
City of Capitola Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Michael Termini  

Vice Mayor: Jacques Bertrand  

Council Members: Ed Bottorff  

 Stephanie Harlan  

 Kristen Petersen  

 
Treasurer: 

 
Peter Wilk 

 

   

 

 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

THURSDAY, MAY 24, 2018 
 

7:00 PM 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 

CLOSED SESSION – 6 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; (5) Mid-
Management Group; and (6) Department Heads 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 
 

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 5/18/2018 12:31 PM 

  

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Ed Bottorff, Stephanie Harlan, and 
Mayor Michael Termini 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Capitola Public Safety Foundation Update  

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointments  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint both a representative and alternate. 

 9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived. 

A. Consider the May 10, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes. 

C. Approval of City Check Registers Dated April 6, April 13, April 20 and April 27, 2018.  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 5/18/2018 12:31 PM 

 

D. Consider a Resolution of Intention to Levy Business Improvement Assessments for 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution receiving the Capitola Village and 
Wharf Business Improvement Area Annual Report and the proposed Fiscal Year 
2018-2019 Budget, and set and notice a public hearing. 

E. Accept a Donation to the Historical Museum and the Art and Cultural Commission 
from the Former Begonia Festival  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept donations. 

F. Adopt an Ordinance Amending Chapter 13.02 Pertaining to Water Conservation 
Plumbing Fixture Retrofit Requirements  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading and adopt an ordinance 
amending Municipal Code Chapter 13.02.- Water Conservation Plumbing Fixture 
Retrofit Requirements. 

G. Adopt an Ordinance Amending Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Markings  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading and adoption of the 
proposed ordinance amending Municipal Code Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Marking to 
allow establishment of site-by-site time limits in loading zones. 

 10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept staff presentation and continue to prohibit 
unsupervised food distribution in residential areas. 

B. Review Potential Traffic Calming Options for Topaz Street and the Jewel Box 
Neighborhood  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review options for traffic calming for Topaz Street and 
the Jewel Box neighborhood, receive public testimony, and authorize staff to proceed 
with a facilitated public workshop. 

 11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 5/18/2018 12:31 PM 

 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 

 



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capitola Public Safety Foundation Update  
 

 
 
DISCUSSION: A board member from the Capitola Public Safety and Community Service 

Foundation will provide an update on its annual activities. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointments  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint both a representative and alternate. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola holds one of 15 seats, with a member and 

an alternate, on the Advisory Council to the Area Agency on Aging/Seniors Council of Santa 

Cruz and San Benito Counties. The Council serves as the advocate and focal point for 

programs and policies that affect the area’s older individuals. The current City appointee’s two-

year term on the Advisory Council ends next month.  The next City appointee’s term will run 

from July 2018 through June 2020. 

Council Member Stephanie Harlan currently serves as the City’s representative; the alternate 

position is vacant. The City’s appointees to the Advisory Council do not need to be elected City 

officials. Council Member Harlan has expressed interest in continuing to represent the City for 

another two-year term. 

On March 14, the City Clerk received an application from Carolyn Sigstedt (Attachment 1), 

which was distributed to council members. Ms. Sigstedt has since met with and attended 

meetings with Council Member Harlan, and she is interested in serving as either the 

representative or the alternate. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Sigstedt Area Aging application 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 6



Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointment  
May 24, 2018 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 7



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ig
st

ed
t 

A
re

a 
A

g
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
C

o
n

si
d

er
 A

re
a 

A
g

en
cy

 o
n

 A
g

in
g

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ig
st

ed
t 

A
re

a 
A

g
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
C

o
n

si
d

er
 A

re
a 

A
g

en
cy

 o
n

 A
g

in
g

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ig
st

ed
t 

A
re

a 
A

g
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
C

o
n

si
d

er
 A

re
a 

A
g

en
cy

 o
n

 A
g

in
g

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the May 10, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular 

meeting of May 10, 2018. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 5-10 draft minutes 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 11



 

 

DRAFT 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, MAY 10, 2018  

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Termini called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. with the following item to be discussed in 
Closed Session: 

 

 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; (5) Mid-
Management Group; and (6) Department Heads 

 
There was no public comment; therefore, the City Council recessed to Closed Session in the 
City Manager’s Office. 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member Ed Bottorff: Present, Mayor 
Michael Termini: Present, Vice Mayor Jacques Bertrand: Present, Council Member Kristen 
Petersen: Present. 
Treasurer Peter Wilk was present. 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Public Service Week Proclamation 

B. Presentation of Check from Capitola Public Safety Foundation to Support 
Scholarships for Junior Guards [485-10/1050-10] 

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

      Attorney Condotti said the Council discussed the negotiations and no reportable action was 
taken. 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

A. Item 9.A – Three public communications 

B. Item 9.E – Memo with modifications to proposed ordinance language 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Tony Lazzerini explained that emergency vehicles, ride services, and others have difficulty 
finding residents of upper Cherry Avenue who access their homes from the alley above. He 
asked for a street sign. Staff noted that it would need to work with emergency services on a 
new street name. Mr. Lazzerini also asked for improved street conditions. 
 
Marcos Vasquez, Topaz resident, asked for action on ongoing traffic concerns. 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

-1
0 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 10, 2018 

 

  

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

Treasurer Wilk followed up on a previous meeting comment about a drop in quarterly sales 
tax and suggested adding a marijuana tax would cover the current expected gap. 
 
City Manager Jamie Goldstein said the draft budget will be distributed tomorrow. 
 
Public Works Director Steve Jesberg announced his department will be holding two 
workshops next week on the wharf and Park Avenue sidewalk. 
 
Council Members Harlan and Bertrand are attending the Queer Youth Awards recognizing 
outstanding youth and allies this weekend. 
 
Mayor Termini noted installation has begun for the Art and Cultural Commission public art 
railing project on Capitola Avenue. In response to a resident’s letter, he asked if the City can 
work with PG&E and Brookvale Terrace on failing transformers. Local firm Fuse Architects 
will oversee work on renovating Wharf buildings. 

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

MOTION: APPROVE AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

A. Consider the April 26, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Approve a Side Letter with Capitola Mid-Management Employees Outlining a New 
Job Description and Salary for the Building Official 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the side letter with the new job description and 
salary for the Building Official reflecting a shared services role with Scotts Valley. 

C. Approve 2018 Slurry Seal Project Plans and Authorize Bidding 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and construction 
estimate for the 2018 Slurry Seal Project and authorize the Public Works Department 
to advertise for bids, setting the bid opening date for June 20, 2018. 

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Finalize the Scope of Work for the Jetty Rehabilitation Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Finalize the scope of work for the beach jetty 
rehabilitation project without the addition of a walking pathway on top of the jetty and 
direct staff to proceed with the final plans and permitting.  

 
Director Jesberg presented the staff report, noting studies of sand movement have been 
conducted to assure the desired beach preservation. Workshop and community 
conversations included the option to add a pathway to the top of the jetty, but it was not 
popular with most respondents due to \ impacts to the beach between Esplanade Park 
and the jetty. 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

-1
0 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 10, 2018 

 

Mayor Termini asked if grants are available.   Director  Jesberg replied he  does  not  
 
believe there are any for the jetty within the time frame, but staff is exploring options 
for the Wharf. 
 
Council Member Bertrand attended the workshops and confirmed the public input. 
He asked if there was any way to know if the original plans reflect what was built. 
Director Jesberg said height and length match and will be replicated. 
 
Council Member Bottorff asked if the price range could be narrowed. Director 
Jesberg said it varies with the amount of rock required, but he estimates $300,000. 
The pathway would increase costs by $125,000 to $150,000. 
 
During public comment, resident Jack Digby said Operation Surf shows the beach is 
handicapped accessible and he opposes a sidewalk on the beach. 
 
Council Member Bottorff said while a walkway initially seemed appealing, it is not 
prudent. 
 

MOTION: APPROVE THE RECOMMENDED SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE JETTY 
WITHOUT A PATHWAY AND DIRECT STAFF TO PROCEED. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

B. Introduce an Ordinance Amending Chapter 13.02 Pertaining to Water Conservation 
Plumbing Fixture Retrofit Requirements 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the first reading of an ordinance amending 
Municipal Code Chapter 13.02 - Water Conservation Plumbing Fixture Retrofit 
Requirements 

 
Director Jesberg presented the staff report and noted the action comes at the request of 
Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
Mayor Termini asked about the impacts of trying to keep the requirement in place. 
Director Jesberg said enforcement involves tracking properties sold and conducting 
inspections, and the City does not have staff to oversee this. City Manager Goldstein 
noted with real property that maintaining the requirement and not enforcing it could 
prevent the closing on a sale. 
 
Shelly Flock, conservation manager of Soquel Creek Water District, explained the 
change was driven by both staff time and diminishing returns. Retrofit programs 
have succeeded and there are few non-complying structures remaining. In addition, 
point-of-sale and building code regulations have supported these efforts. 
 
There was no other public comment. 
 
Mayor Termini expressed a desire to continue to encourage water conservation and 
retrofits. 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

-1
0 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 10, 2018 

 

 

MOTION: APPROVE FIRST READING 

RESULT: PASSED FIRST READING [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

C. Recreation Division Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 

 
City Manager Goldstein presented the staff report. He noted that program participants 
skew toward women and above age 40. The division has also seen a decline in sports 
leagues. The Camp Capitola enrollment decline is due in part to competition from Boys 
and Girls Club and Simpkins Swim Center programs. To maintain league standards for 
competition, Junior Guards staffing costs increased and enrollment was reduced with an 
impact of more than $100,000. 
 

Mayor Termini confirmed that Junior Guards is not self-funding when overhead is 
included in costs. 
 
Council Member Bertrand explained he asked for this report in part because of future 
costs to maintain the building. He would like future outreach on the types of 
programs desired to serve more of the community, and is especially interested in 
serving youth. Council Member Harlan suggested asking for ideas in the City 
newsletter. 
 

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT 

D. Consider a Resolution Opposing the Industry-Backed “Tax Fairness, Transparency, 

and Accountability Act of 2018” Ballot Initiative 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution. 

 
City Manager Goldstein presented the staff report, noting the change in the tax threshold 
to two-thirds for voters and Council actions have potentially significant impact on the 
City’s ability to raise revenue.  
 
Mayor Termini confirmed that, if qualified and passed, this initiative would increase the 
vote threshold for the marijuana tax Council is considering for the November ballot. 

 

MOTION: ADOPT THE RESOLUTION 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

E. Introduce an Ordinance Amending Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Markings 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the first reading of an ordinance amending 
Municipal Code Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Markings to allow establishment of site-by-
site time limits in loading zones.  

 
Director Jesberg presented the staff report. He highlighted a change in the ordinance  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

-1
0 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 10, 2018 

 

 
language, though not of intent or direction, that was revised after agenda distribution. He 
noted a recommendation to make an additional change in Section 2 from “two-hour” to 
“posted times.”  
 

There was no public comment. 
 
Council Member Bottorff thanked staff for bringing this item back as requested. 
 

MOTION: APPROVE THE FIRST READING WITH THE UPDATED LANGUAGE AS 
PRESENTED 

RESULT: PASSED FIRST READING [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

SECONDER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting adjourned at 8:01 p.m. 
 

    ___________________________ 
     Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

-1
0 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Action Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review are the action minutes of the May 3, 2018, Planning 

Commission regular meeting. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 05-03-2018 Action 
 

Report Prepared By:   Jackie Aluffi 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 17



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 5/4/2018 9:37 AM  

DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, MAY 3, 2018 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Newman: Present; Commissioner Smith: Present; Chairperson Storey: Present; 
Commissioner Welch: Present; Commissioner Westman: Present. 
 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda – None 

B. Public Comments – None  

C. Commission Comments – None  

D. Staff Comments – None  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM 
 
The minutes were continued to a date in the future. 

RESULT: CONTINUED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 110 Capitola Avenue Suite 1 #18-128 APN: 035-185-25 
Sign Permit for a new sign for Mia Bella Adonic, a new boutique located within the C-V 
(Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: GI 110 Capitola Ave, LLC 
Representative: Kayla & Dee Dee Wilson Filed: 03.23.2018  
 

MOTION: Approve Sign Permit. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

 

 

 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

5-
03

-2
01

8 
A

ct
io

n
  (

M
ay

 3
, 2

01
8 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 2 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1350 49th Avenue #18-0050 APN: 034-068-14 
Design Permit for a 670-square foot addition to an existing single-family residence with a 
variance for an encroachment into the side yard setback located at 1350 49th Avenue 
within the R-1 (Single-Family) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rick Aberle 
Representative: Stephen Lang, Filed: 01.26.2018 
  

MOTION: Approve Design Permit, Coastal Development Permit, and variance for an 
encroachment into the side yard setback. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

 
 
B. 318 Riverview Avenue #18-0045 APN: 035-172-18 

Design Permit for demolition of an existing two-story single-family residence and 
construction of a new three-story single-family residence which includes a 
variance request for parking standards and open space located within the C-V 
(Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: JDT Capital LLC 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, Filed: 01.24.2018 
 

MOTION: Approve Design Permit, Coastal Development Permit, and variances for parking 
space dimensions and open space and a maximum floor area of 2,000 square feet, and deny 
the variance request for the required number of parking spaces, with final design approval by 
staff, and amended conditions and findings. 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Welch, Westman 

RECUSED: Newman, Storey 

 
 
C. 2205 Wharf Road #18-0108 APN: 034-141-34 

Minor land division to create two lots of record and design permit for a new single-family 
residence for the property located at 2205 Wharf Road in the RM-LM (Residential Multi-
Family – Low-Medium Density) Zoning District.   
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

5-
03

-2
01

8 
A

ct
io

n
  (

M
ay

 3
, 2

01
8 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 3 
 

Property Owner: Christopher Wright 
Representative: Dennis Norton, filed: 3/7/2018 
 
 

MOTION: Approve Minor Land Division, as amended with the additional CEQA exemption. 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

1. Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District   
Future amendment to the Capitola Zoning Code (Municipal Code Chapter 17) to allow retail 
cannabis sales within the Regional Commercial Zoning District with a Conditional Use 
Permit.  
The Regional Commercial Zoning District is outside the Coastal Zone and therefore is not 
subject to Local Coastal Program Certification by the Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Exempt 
Property: All property within the Regional Commercial Zone within the City of Capitola 
Representative: Katie Herlihy, Community Development Director, City of Capitola 
 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

5-
03

-2
01

8 
A

ct
io

n
  (

M
ay

 3
, 2

01
8 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated April 6, April 13, April 20 and April 27, 

2018.  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 
 

Account: City Main 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

4/6/2018 89207 89249 48 $319,058.58 

4/13/2018 89250 89307 59 $123,111.61 

4/20/2018 89308 89358 55 $233,398.56 

4/27/2018 89359 89402 46 $71,653.84 

The main account check register dated March 30, 2018, ended with check #89206. 

 

Account: Library 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

4/13/2018 60 62 3 $6,352.80 

4/20/2018 63 63 1 $475 

4/27/2018 64 66 3 $140,054.01 

The library account check register dated March 30, 2018, ended with check #59. 

Check #65 for $548.20 was voided (not library expense). 
 

Account: Payroll 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

4/6/2018 5312 5312 1 $953.78 

4/13/2018 5313 5317 96 $151,343.55 

4/27/2018 5318 5324 97 $175,417.33 

The payroll account check register dated March 30, 2018, ended with check #5311.  

 
Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000 and a brief description of the expenditure: 

 

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount 

89243 US Bank PARS FN Quarterly PARS trust $125,000 

9.C

Packet Pg. 21



Approval of City Check Registers  
May 24, 2018 
 

contribution 

EFT 588 
CalPERS Health 

Insurance 
FN April health insurance $63,036.56 

EFT 589 
CalPERS Member 

Services 
FN 

PERS contributions                  

PPE 3/24/18 
$48,000.18 

EFT 591 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare $23,276.25 

89302 Visit Santa Cruz County FN 3rd Quarter TMD remittance $43,831.76 

89309 Alexander Electric Inc. REC 
Community Center generator, 

transfer switch, installation 
$25,564.87 

89310 
Atchison Barisone 

Condotti & Kovacevich 
CM March legal services $20,641.71 

89349 
Vision Communications 

Company 
PD Police radio infrastructure $44,324.36 

EFT 594 
CalPERS Member 

Services 
FN 

PERS contributions                    

PPE 4/7/18 
$48,420.12 

EFT 596 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare $23,125.65 

89360 4Leaf Inc. CD 
Interim building official 

services 
$10,530 

89385 
Kimley Horn and 

Associates 
PW 

Monterey and Park Ave. 

pedestrian trail improvements 
$10,531.20 

89391 PG&E PW Monthly utilities $14,486.12 

64 Kingsley Companies PW Library book drop and carts $11,142.79 

66 Noll and Tam Architects PW 

Library construction 

documents and consultant 

expenses 

$128,911.22 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 4/6/18 City Check Register 
2. 4/13/18 City Check Register 
3. 4/20/18 City Check Register 
4. 4/27/18 City Check Register 

 
Report Prepared By:   Maura Herlihy 
 Account Technician 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 22



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/6
/1

8 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/1
3/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
0/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.C.4

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

/2
7/

18
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution of Intention to Levy Business Improvement Assessments 

for Fiscal Year 2018-2019  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution receiving the Capitola Village and Wharf 
Business Improvement Area Annual Report and the proposed Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget, 
and set and notice a public hearing. 
 
BACKGROUND: In June 2005, the City of Capitola adopted Ordinance No. 889, which 
established the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area (CVWBIA) to generate 
revenue for the exclusive purpose of promoting business in the CVWBIA. State law requires 
certain annual actions and a public hearing to continue this assessment district. 
 
DISCUSSION: In accordance with state law, the CVWBIA is required to submit an annual plan 
for each year for assessments to be levied in the CVWBIA. The annual report, Exhibit A to the 
proposed Resolution (Attachment 1), was prepared by the CVWBIA. It fulfills the requirement for 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and is submitted for Council review and approval. Assessment rates are 
unchanged from last year and a discount will be offered to businesses that pay by the due date. 
 
The annual report also outlines the CVWBIA’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 planned activities and 
proposed budget.  These include: 
 

• Increasing the number of year-round visits; 

• Increasing the number of people who stay, shop and dine; 

• Improving ease of access to information via newsletters, the internet and print 
advertising; 

• Providing fun, family-oriented events throughout the year; 

• Improving and enhancing the appearance of the Village in cooperation with the City; 

• Enhancing the ability of the CVWBIA to serve as a liaison between business owners, 
private and government agencies, and the City; and 

• Increasing awareness outside of our community about the uniqueness of Capitola. 
 
Pursuant to state law, staff recommends the City Council adopt the proposed resolution of 
intention providing notification of the City’s intent to levy business improvement assessments for 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019; receiving the annual report and proposed budget of the CVWBIA; 

9.D

Packet Pg. 56



Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention  
May 24, 2018 
 
setting the date for a public hearing to be held on Thursday, June 14, 2018; and outlining 
noticing requirements.  
 
A representative of the CVWBIA will attend the meeting; however, the CVWBIA’s presentation 
will be made at the public hearing on June 14. 
 
A notice of public hearing (Attachment 2) will be sent to each business in the area, along with a 
copy of the adopted resolution of intention. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact to the City. CVWBIA billing and accounts payable 
costs incurred by the City are offset by assessment revenues. The City and CVWBIA have 
reviewed amounts charged by the City for these services and agree that they are reasonable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. CVWBIA Exhibit A FY18-19 (PDF) 
2. CVWBIA mailed notice  (PDF) 

 
Report Prepared By:   Mark Sullivan 
 Senior Accountant 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.D

Packet Pg. 57



Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention  
May 24, 2018 
 
 
 

DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  

TO LEVY BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENTS  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 

 

WHEREAS, the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area (“CVWBIA”) 
has prepared a report to the City of Capitola for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 pertaining to the 
Business Improvement Area assessments for the CVWBIA under California Streets and 
Highways Code §36533; and 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.050 requires annual assessments to be 
imposed within the CVWBIA pursuant to a formula set forth in City Council Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Annual Report and Proposed Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget of the CVWBIA 
pertaining to business improvement assessments, as presented in Exhibit A attached hereto, is 
received. 

2. The City Council intends to levy and collect assessments within the CVWBIA for 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019. 

3. The proposed activities authorized by Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 5.10 are 
described in the afore-referenced CVWBIA Annual Report. The activities financed from these 
funds include promotional information, media announcements, and advertising in regional 
magazines, broadcast services, and websites. 

4. The Business Improvement Area is bounded per the map referenced in Municipal 
Code §5.10.020 and included in Ordinance 1003. The CVWBIA boundaries are not being 
altered this year. 

5. The Annual Report of the CVWBIA and proposed assessments for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 are presented in Exhibit A attached hereto and on file with the City Clerk to provide a 
full and detailed description of the improvements and activities to be provided during Fiscal Year 
2018/2019, the boundaries of the area, and the proposed assessments to be levied upon the 
businesses within the area for Fiscal Year 2018/2019. 

6. The Capitola City Council will hold a public hearing in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, at 7 p.m. on Thursday, June 14, 2018, to 
receive any oral or written protests or endorsements to the regularity or sufficiency of the 
proposed business improvement assessments.  If written protests complying with Streets and 
Highways Code §36524 and §36525 are received from the owners of businesses which will pay 
fifty percent or more of the assessments, assessments will not be levied, the procedure will be 
terminated and will not be reconsidered until one full year has elapsed. 

7. The City Clerk is directed to give notice of the public hearing to consider the levy of 
business improvement assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 by publishing this Resolution of 

9.D

Packet Pg. 58



Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention  
May 24, 2018 
 
Intention in a newspaper of general circulation in the City once, at least seven days prior to the 
public hearing. 

8.   The CVWBIA Advisory Committee is directed to give notice of the public hearing to 
each business owner in the area by mailing a copy of the Council’s Resolution of Intention to 
each business within its boundaries.  

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 24th day of May, 
2018, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   
  
         
                 _______________________ 

Michael Termini, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.D

Packet Pg. 59



EXHIBIT A 

Resolution No. _____ 
 

Annual Report & Proposed Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget 
CVWBIA Assessment Basis 

CVWBIA Business Listing and Assessment Method 

Mission Statement 

The objective of the CVWBIA is to provide a unified organization to promote, stimulate and 
improve the business conditions in the designated area, primarily during the shoulder season, 
September – May.  The belief is that if the lodging properties and short-term rentals are full, the 
rest of the businesses in the area will benefit. 
 
This can be achieved by the CVWBIA continuing to fund activities and projects that will: 
 

 Improve access to information regarding the businesses and services provided by the Vil-
lage and Wharf BIA to likely visitors to the area via newsletters, the internet and print ad-
vertising. 

 Provide fun, family-oriented events throughout the year emphasizing the attributes of the 
Village and Wharf, by working in partnership with the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce. 

 Improve and enhance the appearance of the Village and Wharf in partnership with the 
City of Capitola. 

 Enhance the ability of the CVWBIA to serve as a liaison between the business community 
and local governments. 

 
 
As the CVWBIA begins its thirteenth year, we will continue and expand successful programs 
from prior years, which include the following: 

 
 

1. Website – We maintain a recently updated, mobile compatible, website (www.capitolavil-
lage.com) for ease of use and connectivity to BIA member’s businesses, lodging and short-
term rentals.  Each member has a unique page with links to their individual websites.  There 
is a schedule of events and other helpful features.  Visitors can sign up on the site to receive 
newsletters and enter contests to win gift certificates from member businesses. 

 
2. Social Media – The Communications Manager creates a monthly newsletter, which is emailed 

to over 10,500 subscribers.  Our Facebook page has over 10,868 fans.  Our contests on 
Facebook have an average engagement of 5,000.  On Facebook, our top 5 cities are Santa Cruz, 
San Jose, Capitola, Modesto and Sacramento. Our Instagram has 4,442 followers with an 
average of 250 website visits from our account per week.  We are new to Twitter with 550 
followers and growing.  We have many professional photographs posting to our pages. 

 
 

 
 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

3. Print Advertising – While placing an emphasis on our social media development, there is 
still a need for carefully placed advertising in quality visitor publications.  We are constantly 
monitoring these publications for the ones with the most effective online presence.  The 
CVWBIA will continue to co-op with Visit Santa Cruz to promote Capitola Village and 
Wharf in their visitor magazine, their map and on their website. 

 
4. Village Brochures – We print 25,000 brochures and distribute them throughout Santa Cruz 

County.  We contract with Certified Display Service.  This company has exclusive rights to 
lobby racks in the hotels, resorts and visitor centers in the county.  These brochures are also 
available in various places of business throughout the Village and Wharf.  We feel it is 
important to make visitors to other areas in the county aware of Capitola Village and Wharf 
through these brochures. 

 
5. Branding and Logo Development – The Marketing & Events Committee is interviewing 

graphic designers and agencies to review our branding, with possible changes in the logo, to 
be used in advertising and social media. 

 
6. Winter Festivities – Every year we plan to improve the decorations in the village to further 

our brand as the Holiday Village and Lights, with a consistent theme and increased location of 
specialty lighting. A tree lighting ceremony, community caroling and window decorating 
contest are components of the winter festivities with other events in the planning stages. 

 
7. Membership Breakfast – These breakfasts, hosted by Paradise Beach Grille, are an 

opportunity to inform members about current activities and receive valuable input.  
Educational presentations, as well as reports by city representatives, are given at these 
breakfasts. 

 
8. Public Works – The CVWBIA contributes annually to the City of Capitola Public Works 

Department.  Our contribution is used to help maintain the Village and Wharf. 

 
9. Chamber of Commerce – The CVWBIA contributes annually to support community interest 

projects and events in the Village. 

 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Assessment Basis 

 
The method of assessment classifies businesses within the CVWBIA boundaries into seven 
categories: 

 
1. Retail / Service businesses 
2. Restaurant / Bar / Take-out food and beverage businesses 
3. Restaurant - Limited 
4. Office and Professional businesses / Specialty 
5. Short-term Rental businesses 
6. Seasonal Foods  
7. Hotel / Motel / Inn businesses 

 
Assessment fees are assigned to these seven business categories by number of full-time equivalent 
employees, a flat rate, and a per unit amount.  Registered non-profits are exempt from assessment 
fees.   
 
The following table shows the assessment fees for the proposed CVWBIA.  Assessment fees have 
not increased from the prior year and a discount is offered to businesses that pay their assessment 
by the due date. 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Footnote* “Full-time employee” is an employee who works 2,000 hours per year or more. 
Multiple part-time employees are combined into a single full-time employee for the basis of this 
assessment calculation.  (i.e. “fulltime equivalents”) 

Footnote** “Restaurant-Limited” businesses are defined as small, informal cafes serving simple 
foods, baked goods, and/or drinks, for consumption on or off the premises, that may or may not 
have seating, including, but not limited to, coffee stores, juice bars, bakeries, delicatessens, and 
confectioneries.   Annual gross receipts are $150,000 or less.  

Footnote*** “Short-term rental” businesses are defined as those dwellings which, at least once 
per fiscal year, are rented to a tenant for a tenancy of less than thirty days. 

 Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
Employees*

Business Category 
0 – 5 

employees 
6 – 10 

employees 

More than 
10 

employees 
Retail / Service $462 $924 $1,386 

Restaurant / Bar / Take-out $528 $1,056 $1,584 
 Flat Fee 
Restaurant – Limited** $308 
Office / Professional / 
Specialty 

$132 

Short-term Rental*** $198 

Seasonal Food Service $308 
 Per Unit Fee 
Hotel / Motel / Inn $396 per unit 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

In-Lieu Payments/Trades. The City Manager is authorized to approve “in lieu” assessment 
payments in the form of Gift Certificates from CVWBIA retail, food or lodging business members 
whereby these businesses tender retail, restaurant and lodging gift certificates for use by the 
CVWBIA in connection with its promotional activities.  The amount of “in lieu” assessment 
payments will be fixed per category, with exceptions that may be authorized by the City Manager. 
 

Business Category 
Assessment 
if paid after 

8/31/18 
Discount 

Amount due 
WITHOUT 
In-lieu/trade 

In-lieu/trade 
for timely 
payment 

Amount due 
paid by 
8/31/18 

Retail/Service (0 - 5 Employees) $462 $42 $420 $75 $345 

Retail/Service (6 - 10 Employees) $924 $84 $840 $150 $690 

Retail/Service (11+ Employees) $1,386 $126 $1,260 $225 $1,035 

Restaurant/Bar (0 - 5 Employees)  $528 $48 $480 $75 $405 

Restaurant/Bar (6 - 10 Employees) $1,056 $96 $960 $150 $810 

Restaurant/Bar (11+ Employees) $1,584 $144 $1,440 $225 $1,215 

Restaurant – Limited $308 $28 $280 $0 $280 

Office / Professional /Specialty $132 $12 $120 $0 $120 

Hotel / Motel / Inn 
$396 per 

unit
$36 per 

unit
$360 per unit 50% 

$180 per 
unit

Short-term Rental $198 $18 $180 $0 $180 

Seasonal Food Service $308 $28 $280 $0 $280 

 
 
Associate Membership. CVWBIA is authorized to accept “associate membership” financial 
contributions from businesses outside the CVWBIA, which may wish to participate in the 
CVWBIA’s promotional activities, but are not subject to the CVWBIA assessments. 
 
New Business Assessment.  Assessments will be prorated by the quarter in which a business 
opens.  “In Lieu” payments will be accepted. 
 
Business Closing.  A business notifying the CVWBIA before the end of the first quarter of the 
fiscal year (September 30th) that it will close before December 31st will be exempt from paying 
the assessment for that fiscal year.  If the business does not close before December 31st, it must 
pay the year's assessment in full. 
 
Discount.  There will be a discount for paying the assessment by the due date of August 31, 2018. 
 
Delinquencies. CVWBIA has a clear policy relative to delinquent assessments.  Businesses that 
have not paid their assessment by October 31, 2018, will be removed from the CVWBIA website 
and brochure.  Assessments that have not been paid by January 31, 2019, will be sent to collections. 
  

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Estimated Actual for FY 2017-2018 and Proposed Budget for FY 2018-2019 

 
FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 17/18 FY 18/19

Actual Budget Est. Actual Proposed

Beginning Fund Balance (2)$                   11,848$            11,848$            8,000$             

Revenues

BIA Assessment Revenues - Village* 57,810              60,000              59,028              60,000             

Assessment Associate -                       -                        -                        1,450               

BIA Assessment Revenues - Trade** 12,670              13,000              13,230              13,000             

BIA Assessment Late Fees 748                   -                        1,040                150                  

Interest Revenue 186                   100                   540                   150                  

Misc. Revenue (iSkate) -                       -                        3,189                -                       

Total Revenues 71,414              73,100              77,027              74,750             

Total Source of Funds 71,412$          84,948$          88,875$          82,750$         

Expenditures

Advertising & Consulting 44,063$            60,750$            62,440$            57,350$           

Maintenance - City Public Works 3,000                3,000                3,000                3,000               

Billing/Collection - City Accounting 4,200                4,200                4,200                4,200               

Capitola Soquel Chamber Of Commerce 3,000                3,000                3,000                3,000               

Services -                       -                        -                        3,800               

Supplies 5,300                800                   8,235                400                  

Doubtful Accounts -                       3,000                -                        3,000               

Total Expenditures 59,563              74,750              80,875              74,750             

Ending Fund Balance 11,848$          10,198$          8,000$             8,000$           

The following tables provide detail for selected items of the proposed FY 18/19 Budget:

Proposed Proposed
FY 18/19 FY 18/19

Retail / Service 18,900$            Gift Certificates** 13,000$           
Restaurant / Bar / Take-out 16,320$            Directories 4,454               

Restaurant - Limited 2,520$              VSC Partnership 7,680               
Office / Professional / Specialty 2,880$              Various Advertising 6,800               

Hotel / Motel / Inn 18,360$            Website Management 1,000               

Short-term Rentals 14,040$            Consulting 10,500             
Associate Member 1,440$              Holiday 6,500               

Seasonal Foods -$                     Projects 5,400               

Subtotal 74,460$          Insurance 1,100               

Unanticipated Events 916                  
* 18/19 Proposed Budget revenues reduced from roster Total 57,350$         
    estimates based on prior year actual information

** Gift Certificates are provided from "Trade" revenues

Assessment Revenue Detail* Advertising Detail

 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Budget Discussion 

 
 
The CVWBIA will begin Fiscal Year 2018-2019 with an estimated fund balance of $8,000. 
 
 
Revenues: The proposed revenue is derived from the CVWBIA business roster and corresponding 
assessment rates. The allocation of cash and in-lieu revenue is based upon FY 2017-2018 actuals.  

 

Expenditures: 

Summary. The proposed expenditures include advertising and related services of $57,350, City 
public works maintenance for beautification of $3,000, City accounting staff of $4,200 for billing 
and accounts payable services and $3,000 for the partnership with the Chamber of Commerce.  
This year’s proposed budget also includes $3,000 for doubtful accounts and $400 for supplies.   

 

Advertising is the CVWBIA’s principal expenditure. 

 Advertising ($14,480) In addition to social media, the CVWBIA advertises in various 
visitor information magazines and in projects in partnership with Visit Santa Cruz (VSC).  
The past year included SF Guide, Monterey Bay Travel Magazine, Summer Magazine, 
Explore Silicon Valley, VSC Map, VSC Travel Guide and a VSC TV partnership covering 
SF, Sacramento & the Central Valley.  Each of these is considered on an individual basis 
each year. 

 Gift Certificates ($13,000): Members may satisfy a portion of their annual fee with gift 
certificates. These certificates are used to promote specific businesses in the Village 
through donations to various activities in the Village and promotional incentives to 
potential visitors to Capitola. 

 Winter Festivities: This year we have budgeted $6,500 for holiday decorations & events. 

 Brochures ($4,454): We print approximately 25,000 brochures, which are available at all 
local merchants and distribution centers throughout the area. 

 Website Management ($1,000):  Our website www.capitolavillage.com is now thirteen 
years old and was overhauled in 2015-16. 

 Communications Manager and Village Ambassador ($10,500):  The consultants filling 
these positions communicate directly with members to promote the village and individual 
businesses on all forms of social media.  They produce twelve visitor-newsletters and 
approximately six member-newsletters per year. 

 Social Media Boost ($1,000): The recent increase in social media advertising results in a 
shift from traditional advertising to web-based advertising. 

 Unanticipated Events:  We have also provided $916 for unanticipated events as we add 
new members with new ideas. 

 
 

The following is a roster of open businesses in the assessment area as of May 14, 2018. 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Business Listing and Assessment Method 

 
Business Type Assessment Method Estimate Assessment 

F = FOOD (Larger restaurants) Per employee category: 0-5; 6-10; >10 employees F $16,320 

RL = RESTAURANT LIMITED Flat fee RL $2,520 

H = HOTEL/MOTEL/INN Flat fee per unit or room H $18,360 

O = OFFICE/PROFESSIONAL Flat fee O $2,880 

R = RETAIL/SERVICE Per employee category: 0-5; 6-10; >10 employees R $18,900 

SF = SEASONAL FOOD Flat fee SF $0 

SR = SHORT TERM RENTALS Flat fee per unit SR $14,040 

AM = Associate Member Associate Member AM $1,440 

    Total $74,460 

 

 

Business Address Business Name TYPE 
FY18/19 

Est. 
Size 

FY18/19 
Est. Amt 

Due  

504 Bay Avenue Gayle's Bakery & Rosticceria AM > 10 $1,440 

1400 Wharf Road Wharf House Restaurant F 6 - 10 $960 

209A Esplanade Pizza My Heart F 6 - 10 $960 

215 Esplanade Paradise Beach Grille F > 10 $1,440 

1750 Wharf Road Shadowbrook Restaurant F > 10 $1,440 

203 Esplanade Zelda's F > 10 $1,440 

110 Monterey Avenue Britannia Arms Pub & Rest. F > 10 $1,440 

231 Esplanade #101 Margaritaville F > 10 $1,440 

316 Capitola Avenue Bella Roma Café F 0 - 5 $480 

123 Monterey Avenue El Toro Bravo F 0 - 5 $480 

231 Esplanade #100 Mr. Toots Coffee & Tea F 0 - 5 $480 

200 Monterey Avenue #1 Souza's Ice Cream & Candy F 0 - 5 $480 

103 Stockton Avenue Armida Winery F 0 - 5 $480 

200 Monterey Avenue #3 Geisha Japanese Restaurant & Tea House F 0 - 5 $480 

209B Esplanade Bay Bar & Grill F 0 - 5 $480 

207 Esplanade Sea Side Siam F 0 - 5 $480 

115 San Jose Avenue Ste #6 Caruso's Tuscan Cuisine F 0 - 5 $480 

211 Esplanade The Sand Bar  F 0 - 5 $480 

427 Capitola Avenue Avenue Café F 0 - 5 $480 

104 Stockton Avenue Beach Break by Marianne's F 0 - 5 $480 

231 Esplanade Suite 102 Sotola Bar & Grill F 0 - 5 $480 

200 Monterey Avenue #2 Mijos Taqueria F 0 - 5 $480 

115 San Jose Avenue Suite #G Capitola Wine Bar & Merchants F 0 - 5 $480 

210 Esplanade Capitola Hotel II, LLC H 10 $3,600 

5000 Cliff Drive Capitola Beach Suites aka Harbor Lights H 10 $3,600 

250 Monterey Avenue Inn at Depot Hill H 12 $4,320 

1500 Wharf Road Venetian Hotel H 19 $6,840 

321 Capitola Avenue Vice Salon O   $120 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Business Address Business Name TYPE 
FY18/19 

Est. 
Size 

FY18/19 
Est. Amt 

Due 

312E Capitola Avenue 57 Design Inc. O   $120 

312D Capitola Avenue Beach House Rentals O  $120 

301 Capitola Avenue David Lyng & Associates O   $120 

411 Capitola Avenue Fuse Architects O   $120 

415 Capitola Avenue James B. Colip Insurance O   $120 

201 Monterey Avenue Suite H Landmark Properties O   $120 

425 Capitola Avenue #3 Kathy Macdonald Association O   $120 

314 Capitola Avenue Katz & Lapides O   $120 

331 Capitola Avenue #B Michael Lavigne Real Estate O   $120 

331 Capitola Avenue Suite K Newman & Marcus,LLP O   $120 

413 Capitola Avenue Richard Emigh, Land Use O   $120 

331 Capitola Avenue #D Suess Insurance Agency O   $120 

208 San Jose Avenue Capitola Surf & Paddle O   $120 

220 Capitola Avenue Psychic Mermaid O   $120 

331 Capitola Avenue Capitola Village Real Estate O   $120 

314 Capitola Ave Law Offices of Sam Storey O   $120 

425 Capitola Avenue Suite #1 Bodhi Adiction Treatment and Wellness O   $120 

314 Capitola Avenue John H. McSpadden O   $120 

314 Capitola Avenue  Miles J. Dolinger, Attorney at Law O   $120 

112 Stockton Avenue Suite B Visions by Sheena O   $120 

331 Capitola Avenue Capitola Village Massage O   $120 

200 Monterey Avenue #A1 La Bella Fiori O   $120 

207 Monterey Avenue Suite 100 Yellow Bus O   $120 

1400 Wharf Road JFS Inc. dba Capitola Boat & Bait R 0 - 5 $420 

131 Monterey Avenue MRA Sales, dba Capitola Beach Co. R 0 - 5 $420 

417 Capitola Avenue Betsy's Summerhouse Antiques R 0 - 5 $420 

217 Capitola Avenue Big Kahuna Hawaiian Shirts R 0 - 5 $420 

209 Capitola Avenue Craft Gallery  R 0 - 5 $420 

207 Capitola Avenue Craft Gallery Annex R 0 - 5 $420 

114 Stockton Avenue Euphoria Rio Mix R 0 - 5 $420 

110 Capitola Avenue #2 Free to Ride R 0 - 5 $420 

212 Capitola Avenue Gaia Earth Treasures R 0 - 5 $420 

219 Capitola Avenue Hot Feet R 0 - 5 $420 

201 Monterey Avenue #B Kickback R 0 - 5 $420 

120 Stockton Avenue Latta R 0 - 5 $420 

202 Capitola Avenue Nubia Swimwear R 0 - 5 $420 

204 Capitola Avenue Oceania R 0 - 5 $420 

110 Capitola Avenue #1 Panache Bath & Body Shop R 0 - 5 $420 

107 Capitola Avenue Phoebe's R 0 - 5 $420 

116 San Jose Avenue Rainbow City Limit R 0 - 5 $420 

216 Capitola Avenue Slap Happy R 0 - 5 $420 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Business Address Business Name TYPE 
FY18/19 

Est. 
Size 

FY18/19 
Est. Amt 

Due 

214 Capitola Avenue Super Silver R 0 - 5 $420 

117 Capitola Avenue Surf n Shack R 0 - 5 $420 

120 San Jose Avenue Sweet Asylum R 0 - 5 $420 

121 San Jose Avenue Thomas Kinkade Gallery R 0 - 5 $420 

201 Capitola Avenue Village Mouse R 0 - 5 $420 

122 Capitola Avenue Yvonne R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue Southstar PM, Inc. - Parking at the Mercantile R 0 - 5 $420 

120 Monterey Avenue Uchiyama - Swenson - Parking at the Theater R 0 - 5 $420 

201 Monterey Avenue #A Village Sea Glass R 0 - 5 $420 

112 Capitola Avenue Suite, 100 Lumen Gallery R 0 - 5 $420 

115 Capitola Avenue Capitola Reef R 0 - 5 $420 

409 Capitola Avenue Art Inspired R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue Om Rhythms R 0 - 5 $420 

224 Esplanade RNTF LLC dba Bedroom Desserts R 0 - 5 $420 

112 Stockton Avenue Sea Level T's R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue Carousel Taffy & Treats R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue BFF Boutique R 0 - 5 $420 

215 Capitola Avenue Vanity by the Sea R 0 - 5 $420 

116 Stockton Avenue Xandra Swimwear R 0 - 5 $420 

300 Capitola Avenue Quality Market R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue Suite D Reclaimed in Love R 0 - 5 $420 

109 Capitola Avenue Capitola Seashells  R 0 - 5 $420 

110 Capitola Avenue Unit 3 Carmel Bay Company R 0 - 5 $420 

309 Capitola Avenue Neil Simmons Photography R 0 - 5 $420 

208 Monterey Avenue Jade Allen R 0 - 5 $420 

205 Capitola Avenue  Capitola Candy Company R 0 - 5 $420 

126 San Jose Avenue Pueblo Viejo Imports R 0 - 5 $420 

115 San Jose Avenue Santa Cruz Poke RL 0 - 5 $280 

210 Monterey Avenue #1 Thai Basil RL 0 - 5 $280 

105 Stockton Avenue Sea Side Coffee RL 0 - 5 $280 

311 Capitola Avenue Calypso's Cove  RL 0 - 5 $280 

201 Monterey Avenue #C Castagnola Deli & Café RL 0 - 5 $280 

110 Stockton Avenue Bouchees RL 0 - 5 $280 

115 San Jose Avenue Suite Q Off The Block RL 0 - 5 $280 

312-B Capitola Avenue Cork and Fork LLC  RL 0 - 5 $280 

107 San Jose Avenue Suite #8 Left Coast Sausage Worx RL 0 - 5 $280 

222 San Jose Avenue Avonne Stone Jacobs, Judy Jacobs  SR 1 $180 

303 Cherry Way Cal & Carla Cornwell  SR 1 $180 

305 Riverview Avenue Capitola Pelican House  SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #5 Colleen Merle Lund SR 1 $180 

116 Esplanade  Dorean Moore  SR 1 $180 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Business Address Business Name TYPE 
FY18/19 

Est. 
Size 

FY18/19 
Est. Amt 

Due 

310 Riverview Avenue Eleaner Glover  SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #14 Erline Mello SR 1 $180 

318 Capitola Avenue #2 Fred & Sharon Andres SR 1 $180 

215 Monterey Avenue #A  Greg & Maxine Sivaslian SR 1 $180 

206 Monterey Avenue Jay & Pamela Chesavage  SR 1 $180 

5005 Cliff Drive #3 Jean Ladoucour  SR 1 $180 

301 Cherry Way Jeff & Kathie Gaylord SR 1 $180 

208 Monterey Avenue C Pat Castagnola SR 1 $180 

327 Riverview Avenue A Paulo Franca SR 1 $180 

109 Monterey Avenue #4 Sharon Dougan SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #7 Viola M Carr SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #1 Bob Coe SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #20 Leonard Tyson SR 1 $180 

4960 Cliff Drive #2 Tim & Stacy Hopkins SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #11 Jeri Chestnut  SR 1 $180 

225 San Jose Avenue Michelle & Stephen Murphy  SR 1 $180 

318 Capitola Avenue #1 Janet Lau SR 1 $180 

4995 Cliff Drive #B David Johnson SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #2 Albert Ribisi & Mary Scolari SR 1 $180 

5005 Cliff Drive Unit 1 Tom & Susan Baines SR 1 $180 

4950 Cliff Drive Lou Bergma  SR 1 $180 

318 Capitola Avenue #4 Deborah Cohen SR 1 $180 

206 California Avenue Vito Mazzarino  SR 1 $180 

131 Lawn Way  Sunshine Villa  SR 1 $180 

320 Riverview Avenue Leslie Vineyard  SR 1 $180 

409 Riverview Avenue Creekside Cottage SR 1 $180 

417 Riverview Avenue Bridget Taylor SR 1 $180 

309 Cherry Avenue Pan American Investments SR 1 $180 

102 Lawn Way Craig & Mimi French SR 1 $180 

5005 Cliff Drive #6 Alanna Harvey  SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #9 Grandma's Nest SR 1 $180 

109 Monterey Avenue #10 Kelli Aita SR 1 $180 

211 Stockton Avenue #1 Bookman Rental Property  SR 1 $180 

317 Riverview Avenue BHR Property Management SR 1 $180 

112 Capitola Avenue #200 BHR Property Management SR 1 $180 

119 Lawn Way BHR Property Management SR 1 $180 

208 Stockton Avenue John McEnery SR 1 $180 

105 Park Place Capitola Village Deco Beach House SR 1 $180 

214 California Avenue Talbot Family SR 1 $180 

4995 Cliff Drive #A Chris Rasmussen SR 1 $180 

1500 Wharf Road #16 Jacqui Rice Property Management SR 1 $180 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 
 

Business Address Business Name TYPE 
FY18/19 

Est. 
Size 

FY18/19 
Est. Amt 

Due 

317 & 327 Riverview Avenue B Steve & Linda Woodside SR 2 $360 

5005 Cliff Dr #4, 314 Riverview 
Ave 

Sue Norris  SR 2 $360 

1500 Wharf Road #3,4 Watson Family Limited Partnership (Mike Newell) SR 2 $360 

109 Cherry Avenue Units A & B Bill & Julie Kenney SR 2 $360 

209 Stockton Avenue A & B Castillo Properties SR 2 $360 

215 San Jose Avenue #A & #B Beach House Rentals SR 2 $360 

4980 Cliff Drive Unit A & B Steve Pericone  SR 2 $360 

207 San Jose Avenue A & B Surf City Rentals SR 2 $360 

397 & 399 Riverview Avenue Castellanos Properties - Windmill Properties SR 2 $360 

402 Bluegum Avenue A & B Lynda Paulsen  SR 2 $360 

122 San Jose #4 & 6 Khasrow Haghshenas/SJ Apartment LLC SR 2 $360 

207 Monterey Avenue #200 & 
201 

207 Monterey Avenue #200 & 201 SR 2 $360 

201 Monterey Avenue #1 & #2 BHR Property Management SR 2 $360 

231 Esplanade #301, #300, #200 Robert Chestnut SR 3 $540 

212 Monterey Avenue #1, 3, 4 Joseph Minigione SR 3 $540 
   $74,460 

 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 E
xh

ib
it

 A
 F

Y
18

-1
9 

 (
B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

ANNUAL RENEWAL OF THE CAPITOLA VILLAGE AND 
WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 

 

Hearing Body: Capitola City Council 
Hearing Date: Thursday, June 14, 2018 
Hearing Time: 7 p.m. 
Hearing Place: City Hall Council Chambers 
 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola 
 
The Capitola City Council notifies you of a public hearing regarding the annual renewal 
of the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area (CVWBIA) and 
establishing the fee assessments for fiscal year 2017-2018. The renewal plan proposes 
to keep assessment rates the same as last year, offering a discount to businesses that 
pay by the due date.  
 
The Capitola City Council will hold the public hearing in the City Hall Council Chambers 
after 7 p.m. on Thursday, June 14, 2017, and will receive any oral or written protests or 
endorsements of the proposed business improvement assessments. If written protests 
complying with Streets and Highways Code §36524 and §36525 are received from the 
owners of businesses that will pay 50 percent or more of the assessments, assessments 
will not be levied, and the procedure will be terminated and will not be reconsidered until 
one full year has elapsed. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact CVWBIA Board Member Carin Hanna at 831-
475-4466 or the City of Capitola Finance Department at 831-475-7300.   
 

 
 
       _______________________ 

DATED: XX, 2018     CITY OF CAPITOLA  
        Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.D.2

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

V
W

B
IA

 m
ai

le
d

 n
o

ti
ce

   
(B

u
si

n
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
In

te
n

ti
o

n
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Accept a Donation to the Historical Museum and the Art and Cultural 

Commission from the Former Begonia Festival  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept donations. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Capitola Begonia Festival held its final festival in 2017.  As part of the 

process of commemorating the festival, the Begonia Festival Committee has offered to donate 

$10,000 to the Capitola Historical Museum to help with archiving the history of the Begonia 

Festival and $20,000 to the Art and Cultural Commission to partner with the City on a public art 

project to memorialize the festival. 

City of Capitola policy requires City Council acceptance of any donation greater than $5,000. 

 

DISCUSSION: The Capitola Begonia Festival Committee requested the Capitola Historical 

Museum be the central location for archiving and preserving the Begonia Festival’s historical 

documents.  At the May 1, 2018, Historical Museum Board Meeting, the Festival Committee 

submitted a proposal to donate $10,000 to the museum to enable the archiving. The Historical 

Museum Board unanimously recommended the City Council accept the donation. 

At the May 8, 2018, Art and Cultural Commission meeting, Commissioner Laurie Hill presented 

a proposal from the Begonia Committee to co-fund a public art project with the City to 

memorialize the Begonia Festival. The Begonia Committee will contribute $20,000 to a yet-

undecided public art project, with the City contributing at least $20,000 from the Public Art Fund 

for the project. The Begonia Committee suggested the art to be located near the beach or creek 

and will participate on the Art Selection Committee. The Art and Cultural Commission 

unanimously recommended the City Council accept the donation and provide the matching 

Public Art Funds for the project. The final project will be brought to the City Council for approval. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Historical Museum would receive $10,000 toward archiving and 

preserving the Begonia Festival documents and artifacts. These funds will be tracked separately 

from other museum funds. The $20,000 donation for the public art project would go into the 

restricted Public Art Fund, and would be matched with an additional $20,000 from the City’s 

Public Art Fund for the project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

9.E

Packet Pg. 72



Accept Donation To Museum from Begonia Festival  
May 24, 2018 
 

1. Museum Begonia Agenda Report 5-1-18 
2. Museum Minutes Excerpt 
3. A&C Begonia Festival donation report 

 
Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.E

Packet Pg. 73



Capitola Historical Museum Board of Trustees
Agenda Report

Meeting of Tuesday, May 1, 2018

From: Frank Perry, Curator

Date: April 30, 2018

Subject: Cash donation from Begonia Festival

Recommended Action: Accept donation with conditions below

Background: At the conclusion of the 65th and final Capitola Begonia 
Festival, the festival board of directors voted to donate $10,000 of 
remaining festival funds to the Capitola Historical Museum to curate and 
store past Begonia Festival memorabilia and to periodically highlight the 
unique history of the festival in future exhibits and displays. This 
funding is for Begonia Festival memorabilia such as posters, 
photographs, commemorative programs, and souvenir items that will be 
donated by the Festival or otherwise acquired in the future by the 
Museum, as well as Begonia Festival materials already in the Museum 
collection, so as to develop a permanent Begonia Festival archive. 
Proper storage, using acid-free folders and other appropriate archival 
containers will ensure that Begonia Festival history lives on.

If approved, the donation will held in a restricted fund and only 
used for the purposes indicated.  

Fiscal Impact: $10,000 donation to the Museum

9.E.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
se

u
m

 B
eg

o
n

ia
 A

g
en

d
a 

R
ep

o
rt

 5
-1

-1
8 

 (
A

cc
ep

t 
D

o
n

at
io

n
 T

o
 M

u
se

u
m

 f
ro

m
 B

eg
o

n
ia

 F
es

ti
va

l)



            Capitola Historical Museum Board - May 1, 2018 - DRAFT      Page 2 

 

 
 

 
    

 
    

 
 

 
  

 
5. BUSINESS 
 A. Presentation by Begonia Festival 
  President Kisling welcomed Laurie Hill and Teresa Green from the Capitola Begonia 
Festival Committee board of directors to the meeting. 
 
  Laurie Hill, former President of the Capitola Begonia Festival Committee board, 
introduced herself and discussed her reason for addressing the Museum Board.  She explained 
that after the festival came to a close and the Gala event was held last October, there was still 
money left in the bank.  She said the committee has been meeting to find a way to perpetuate the 
festival in some fashion, and they are currently working on a Capitola Beach Festival that would 
occur the last weekend in September.  The committee meets on the first Monday of the month and 
they welcome others from the community who are interested in getting involved with the event.   
 
  The committee recognizes the history of the Capitola Begonia Festival to Capitola 
after 65 years, and they could think of no better place than the Capitola Historical Museum to 
curate and store past Begonia Festival memorabilia.  For that reason, the festival board of 
directors voted to donate $10,000 of remaining funds to the Museum.  This funding would be used 
for developing a permanent Begonia Festival archive of festival memorabilia, such as posters, 
photographs commemorative programs, videos, and souvenir items that will be donated to the 
Museum.  Proper storage, using acid-free folders and other appropriate archival containers will 
ensure the Begonia Festival history will live on.  Mrs. Hill also responded to questions of board 
members pertaining to why there is no more festival. 
 
  President Kisling thanked Mrs. Hill for her presentation and said he is honored that 
the Begonia Festival is interested in preserving its history with the Museum. Trustee Peyton stated 
that the Begonia Festival has been one of the most significant events in the history of Capitola and 
needs to be preserved.  Laurie Hill said the board is happy to share the Begonia Festival’s 
resources with the Museum in order to preserve its history. 
 
  Trustee vanZuiden commented on the Museum’s collaboration with the new library 
where a Begonia Festival exhibit could be included.  Mrs. Hill said they are also working with the 
Art & Cultural Commission in developing an art object commemorating the festival. 
 
  Curator Perry read the Agenda Report dated April 30, 2018, pertaining to a “Cash 
donation from Begonia Festival.”  He noted that the donation would be held in a restricted fund that 
can only be used for the purposes indicated in the report. 
 
  After Trustee discussion, the following action was taken: 
ACTION: Trustee Greeninger moved, seconded by President Kisling, to accept the $10,000 
  donation from the Capitola Begonia Festival Committee with the conditions set forth 
in the   Agenda Report dated April 30, 2018.  The motion carried unanimously. 
   

EXCERPT 9.E.2

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
se

u
m

 M
in

u
te

s 
E

xc
er

p
t 

 (
A

cc
ep

t 
D

o
n

at
io

n
 T

o
 M

u
se

u
m

 f
ro

m
 B

eg
o

n
ia

 F
es

ti
va

l)



              Item #: 5.e 
 

ART & CULTURAL COMMISSION 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

                      MEETING OF MAY 8, 2018 
 
FROM:  STAFF 
 
DATE:  May 4, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Begonia Festival Committee Donation 
 

 
Recommended Action: Recommend Accepting Donation to City Council 
 

 
BACKGROUND At the April Commission meeting, Commissioner Hill requested that proposal from 
the Begonia Festival Committee for a public art project be considered by the Commission.  The 
Begonia Festival has proposed that a public art project to memorialize 65 years of the Begonia 
Festival be installed in Capitola. 
 
The Begonia Festival Committee has proposed donating $20,000 to the City for the project, with an 
equal amount coming from the Public Art fund for the project.  To accept the donation greater than 
$5,000.00, it must be approved by the City Council.  If the Commission recommends receiving the 
donation, staff will bring the donation to the May 24, 2018 Council meeting for approval. 
 
If the donation is accepted by the Council, the Commission can form an art selection subcommittee 
to decide on a potential location and create a Call-to-Artists. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The Begonia Festival Subcommittee is offering to donate $20,000 of a $40,000 for public art project 
memorializing the Capitola Begonia Festival. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
Begonia Call to Artists 
  
Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent  
                  Assistant to the City Manager 

  

9.E.3

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

&
C

 B
eg

o
n

ia
 F

es
ti

va
l d

o
n

at
io

n
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

A
cc

ep
t 

D
o

n
at

io
n

 T
o

 M
u

se
u

m
 f

ro
m

 B
eg

o
n

ia
 F

es
ti

va
l)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt an Ordinance Amending Chapter 13.02 Pertaining to Water Conservation 

Plumbing Fixture Retrofit Requirements  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading and adopt an ordinance amending 
Municipal Code Chapter 13.02.- Water Conservation Plumbing Fixture Retrofit Requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The City’s water retrofit code section was enacted in 2003 at 
the joint request of Soquel Creek Water District and the City of Santa Cruz Water Department. 
Both agencies have service areas within Capitola and requested the original ordinance adoption 
to implement their respective plumbing fixture retrofit regulations. The City’s existing code 
identifies the respective water providers as the entity responsible for implementing the City’s 
ordinance. 
 
Soquel Creek Water District’s Board of Directors voted to discontinue implementing and 
enforcing Capitola’s Municipal Code Section 13.02, Water Conservation Plumbing Fixture 
Retrofit Requirements The proposed ordinance change removes references to Soquel Creek 
Water District’s service area from the requirements. Once the City of Santa Cruz Water 
Department notifies the Capitola that it has discontinued enforcement, anticipated in 2020, the 
entire ordinance can be repealed.  
 
The City Council passes the proposed amendment’s first reading at its May 10, 2018, meeting. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

9.F

Packet Pg. 77



Second Reading Water Conservation Amendment  
May 24, 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.F

Packet Pg. 78



Second Reading Water Conservation Amendment  
May 24, 2018 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING SECTIONS 13.02.010,13.02.020, and 13.02.030(B) and (C)  

OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Sections 13.02.010 and 13.02.020 of Chapter 13.02 “WATER CONSERVATION 
PLUMBING FIXTURE RETROFIT REQUIREMENTS” are hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“13.02.010 Purpose. 
The purpose of this chapter is to reduce long-term demand for potable water within the 
portions of the city served by the City of Santa Cruz Water Department in order to ensure a 
reliable and adequate public water supply by establishing water efficiency standards for 
interior plumbing fixtures when changes in ownership of real property occur.  
 
13.02.020 Application of regulations. 
The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all residential, commercial, and industrial 
buildings served by the City of Santa Cruz Water Department that use water in showers, 
toilets, and urinals whenever the title to real property is conveyed from the seller to the 
buyer, for consideration, by means of a grant deed.” 

 
Section 2.  Subsections B and C of Section 13.02.030 “Definitions” are hereby amended to read 
as follows:  
 

“B. Department. For persons served by the City of Santa Cruz Water Department, 
the term “department” shall refer to the City of Santa Cruz Water Department.  

 
 C. Director. For persons served by the City of Santa Cruz Water Department, the 

term “director” shall refer to the director of the City of Santa Cruz Water 
Department.”  

 
Section 3.   This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days after final adoption. 
 
This ordinance was introduced on the 10th day of May, 2018, and was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 24th day of May, 2018, by the following vote:   
 

AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:            

        APPROVED:  
___________________________ 

    Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.F

Packet Pg. 79



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt an Ordinance Amending Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Markings  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading and adoption of the proposed 
ordinance amending Municipal Code Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Marking to allow establishment of 
site-by-site time limits in loading zones. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: On April 12, 2018, the City Council approved changes to curb 
markings along Capitola Avenue. At that time, the Council directed staff to prepare a municipal 
code amendment of Chapter 10.36.170 Curb Markings to allow alternate time limits for yellow 
curb markings (loading zones) on a site-by-site basis. 
 
The City Council passed the first reading of the proposed amendment at its May 10, 2018, 
meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.G

Packet Pg. 80



Second Reading Yellow Curb Ordinance Amendment  
May 24, 2018 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING SECTION 10.36.170 (B) OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Chapter 10.36.170 (B) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Chapter 10.36.170 
. 

 B. “Yellow” means: 
 

1. From eight a.m. to one p.m., or during such hours as determined by the 
superintendent of streets, all days of the week including holidays, no stopping, 
standing or parking at any time, except that commercial vehicles loading or 
unloading freight, or passenger vehicles loading or unloading passengers, may park 
therein for twenty minutes, or for a period not to exceed the time necessary for the 
loading or unloading, whichever is less. 
 

2. Between hours during which loading and unloading restrictions are not applicable, 
parking meter and/or posted time restrictions shall apply. 

 
Section 2.   This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days after final adoption. 
 
 This ordinance was introduced on the 10th day of May, 2018, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 24th  day of May, 2018, by the 
following vote:   
 

AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:   

         
    APPROVED:  
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
    Michael Termini, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.G

Packet Pg. 81



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept staff presentation and continue to prohibit unsupervised 
food distribution in residential areas. 
 
BACKGROUND: In March, City staff in both the Police and Community Development 

Departments received several complaints regarding a self-serve food cupboard in the front yard 

of the single-family home at 1973 42nd Avenue. Staff followed up with the owner of the property 

and informed her of multiple zoning violations related to the use and location of the structure. 

After two verbal warnings, the owner removed the food cupboard.  

At the April 12, 2018, City Council meeting, Mayor Termini requested food cupboards and little 

libraries be placed on a future agenda for discussion.  

On April 26, 2018, the City Council discussed food cupboards and little libraries. The Council 

directed staff to return with additional information on locations within the City in which food 

cupboards are permitted. (Attachment 1) 

 

DISCUSSION: There are currently two zoning codes in effect in the City: a new code outside 

the coastal zone boundary and the original code inside the coastal zone. The codes have 

different regulations for accessory uses.  

 

In this staff report, a small, stand-alone, unsupervised food distribution structure is referred to as 

a “food cupboard,” considered in the new zoning code as a “non-residential accessory use” 

within an accessory structure. (Attachment 2) 

 

In summary, for areas inside the coastal zone, governed by the original zoning code, a small 

food cupboard located within a commercial zone (excluding the Central Village) would be 

allowed by right on any commercial property that engages in food distribution. The cupboard 

could be located either inside or outside of the primary use building. The design of the structure 

must comply with the accessory structure limitation of 80 square feet or less in size, eight feet or 

less in height, with no electric or plumbing. (See map Attachment 3) 

 

For areas outside the coastal zone, governed by the new zoning code, a small food cupboard 

located within a commercial zone is allowed by right on any commercial property that already 

engages in food distribution as long as the food cupboard is located within the primary structure. 

10.A

Packet Pg. 82



Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update  
May 24, 2018 
 
The new code established the internal access requirement for accessory uses to clean up 

clutter along the frontage of stores.  (See map Attachment 4) 

 

On a larger scale, a traditional food pantry or soup kitchen (not a small accessory structure) can 

be allowed within residential and commercial zones subject to a property’s primary land use and 

the required permits outlined in the table below. The following two tables are separated based 

on inside/outside the coastal zone.  

 

Zoning Applicable Inside Coastal Zone for Traditional Food Pantry 

 

Zone Existing Land Use  Required Permit 

Single Family (R-1) Churches and Religious Institutions Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP) 

Multi Family (R-M) Churches and Religious Institutions CUP 

Mobile Home (MH) Prohibited Prohibited 

Neighborhood Commercial (CN) Lodges and Clubs Permitted 

Professional Office (PO) Public and Quasi Public Uses CUP 

Commercial/Residential (C-R) Club CUP 

Central Village (CV) Prohibited  

Community Commercial (C-C) Assembly Halls CUP 

 Lodges and Clubs CUP 

Industrial (I) Warehouse and Distribution CUP 

 

Zoning Applicable Outside Coastal Zone for Traditional Food Pantry Use 

 

Zone Existing Land Use Required Permit 

Single Family (R-1) Community Assembly* CUP 

Multi Family (R-M) Community Assembly CUP 

Mobile Home (MH) Community Assembly  CUP 

Mixed Use Neighborhood (MU-N) Community Assembly CUP 

Mixed Use Village (MU-V) Community Assembly CUP 

Regional Commercial (C-R) Community Assembly CUP 

Community Commercial (C-C) Food Preparation Minor Use Permit / 

CUP greater than 

5,000 square feet  

Regional Commercial (C-R) Community Assembly CUP 

Industrial (I) Warehousing and Distribution Permitted 

 

 

Established Food Distribution Options in Capitola  
Second Harvest Food Bank of Santa Cruz County has partnerships with more than 100 

agencies and nonprofits throughout Santa Cruz County that help gather and distribute food to 

those in need. The established non-profit organizations manage large quantities of food in 

compliance with food safety standards.  

 

Second Harvest provided the data in the table below identifying the top 12 agencies/programs 

that served Capitola residents in September 2017. The largest program delivers fresh fruits and 

10.A

Packet Pg. 83



Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update  
May 24, 2018 
 
vegetables to New Brighton Middle School’s central kitchen every week. The second largest 

program, administered by Grey Bears, delivers food to 286 Capitola seniors in need.  In total, 

9,265 pounds of food were provided to Capitola residents in September 2017.  

 

 

Capitola Monthly Report  

September 2017 Pounds 
Capitola 

Residents 

Soquel Elementary School District 1,233 562 

Grey Bears 582 286 

Mental Health Client Action Network 1,518 146 

People's Pantry Twin Lakes Church 953 101 

Bay Avenue Senior Apartments 1,738 92 

Santa Cruz Community Health Center 593 79 

Santa Cruz County Office of Alternative Ed 253 27 

Inner Light Pantry 1,488 24 

Star of the Sea Church 275 18 

Harbor Light Church 263 16 

Walnut Avenue Women's Center 89 15 

Janus of Santa Cruz 281 10 

Total 9,265 1,376 

 
* A facility that provides space for public or private meetings or gatherings. Includes places of worship, community centers, meeting 

space for clubs and other membership organizations, social halls, union halls, banquet centers, and other similar facilities. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Food Cupboard Council Report 4-26-18 
2. 17.52 Accessory Structures 
3. Zoning Map Inside Coastal Boundary 
4. 2018 Zoning Map for Outside Coastal Boundary 

 
Report Prepared By:   Katie Herlihy 
 Community Development Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 84



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 26, 2018 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Food Cupboard and Free Little Libraries  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept staff presentation and continue to prohibit unsupervised 
food distribution in residential areas.   
 
BACKGROUND: City staff in both the Police and Community Development Departments have 

received several complaints regarding a self-serve food cupboard in the front yard of the single-

family home at 1973 42nd Avenue. The complaints included concern about attracting people to 

the residential area that do not reside in the neighborhood and the number of vehicle break-ins 

in the area.  

Community Development staff visited the site and confirmed a small food cupboard had been 

installed on two posts in the front yard. The cupboard contained a mix of food including canned 

goods, boxes of rice, fruits, loaves of bread, cottage cheese, and repackaged, unlabeled food. 

One sign at the bottom of the cupboard provide the following instructions “This Cupboard is for 

people in need. If you are well-off, please consider donating and leave food for those in need.” 

On March 30, 2018, staff called the property owner to inform her of multiple zoning violations 

related to use and location of structure. The owner verbally agreed to remove the cupboard. 

That afternoon, staff verified that the cupboard had been removed. 

On April 4, 2018, the City received a second complaint that a modified design of the self-serve 

food pantry (open top box) had been installed in the previous location of the cupboard. During a 

second phone conversation, staff informed the property owner if the use continues, the City will 

follow up with a notice of violation and subsequent fines. After that second notice, the property 

owner removed the food pantry box.  

At the April 12, 2018, City Council meeting, Mayor Termini requested food cupboards and little 

libraries be placed on a future agenda for discussion.      

DISCUSSION: As implemented, the “food pantry” concept conflicts with three sections of the 

Capitola zoning code.  

 

1. The subject food pantry cupboard is located in the RM-M (multi-family/medium density) 

zoning district. Food preparation and distribution is a prohibited land use in all residential 

zoning districts (Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) Table 17.16-1).  

 

One goal of the Capitola zoning code is to protect and enhance the quality of life in 

residential neighborhoods. The code achieves this goal through limiting land use types to 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
l R

ep
o

rt
 4

-2
6-

18
  (

F
o

o
d

 C
u

p
b

o
ar

d
 C

u
rr

en
t 

Z
o

n
in

g
 U

p
d

at
e)



Food Pantry Cupboard and Free Little Libraries  
April 26, 2018 
 

compatible uses within specific zones.  

 

As implemented at 1973 42nd Avenue, the food cupboard is considered food distribution 
because members of the public can access the site at any time and pick up available food. 
Residential zones prohibit food distribution due to the impacts associated with the land use 
including increased foot and vehicle traffic, increased parking demand, and attracting the 
public into a residential neighborhood.  

 

2. As implemented at 1973 42nd Avenue, the food cupboard is an accessory structure in the 

front yard of the property. Accessory structures are prohibited in front yards (CMC Table 

17.52-1). 

 

In the single-family and multi-family zoning districts, all development is subject to a 15-feet 
minimum front-yard setback requirement. Improvements in the front yard are limited to 
decorative site features (planter boxes, open trellis structures, etc.), firepits, and movable 
structures (dog house, play equipment). Accessory structures are prohibited in front yards. 
Proliferation of accessory structure in front yards would change the development pattern 
within Capitola’s residential areas and may result in visual clutter.   

 

3. The property owner is conducting business on the residential property which requires a 

home occupation permit. The food cupboard is in violation of the following home 

occupancy standards (§17.96.040.B): 

 

o Deliveries. Deliveries and pick-ups for home occupations may not interfere with 

vehicle circulation, and shall occur only between 8:00 am and 8:00 pm, Monday 

through Saturday.  

o On-Site Client Contact. No more than one client/customer at the property at one 

time. Customer or client visits are limited to three per day, or six per day for 

personal instruction services (e.g., musical instruction or training, art lessons, 

academic tutoring).  

o Outdoor Storage Prohibited. Goods, equipment, and materials associated with a 

home occupation shall be stored within an enclosed structure or in a manner that 

is not visible from the property line.  

 

In the RM-M zoning district, permitted uses include single-family dwellings, accessory 

dwellings, duplex homes, group housing, multi-family housing, small residential care 

facilities, small home day care, and minor utilities. The code allows for unobtrusive home-

based businesses through a home occupation permit. These permits can be issued by staff, 

provided the business complies with the standards in the code. Generally, these types of 

businesses include graphic design and home offices for services conducted elsewhere. 

 

The food cupboard does not fit within the regulations for a home occupation as the food is 

displayed and stored outside, more than three clients come to the home daily, and deliveries 

to the cupboard can occur at any time of day or night.  

 
Public Health and Safety: When the City receives an application for food preparation and 
distribution, all permits must be reviewed and approved by the County of Santa Cruz Health 
Services Agency. The food cupboard was installed without permits from the City or County. In 
discussions with staff from the County Health Service Agency, the following concerns regarding 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
l R

ep
o

rt
 4

-2
6-

18
  (

F
o

o
d

 C
u

p
b

o
ar

d
 C

u
rr

en
t 

Z
o

n
in

g
 U

p
d

at
e)



Food Pantry Cupboard and Free Little Libraries  
April 26, 2018 
 
the food cupboards were identified: 
 

1. Lack of control over the food in the cupboards; 
2. No approved source of the food; 
3. Mishandling of potentially hazardous foods; 
4. Lack of food safety for foods prepared in uninspected home kitchens; 
5. No oversight of cupboard integrity/protection from contamination from vermin, insects 

and the elements; and 
6. Management of how and where excess food is stored. 

 
County Health staff suggested the property owner could work with an existing nonprofit such as 
Second Harvest Food Bank or Meals on Wheels. Another option would be to establish a similar 
operation working with a local church or other establishment with adequate space to store, 
monitor, and distribute the food donations. 
 
Staff reached out to Second Harvest Food Bank of Santa Cruz County to see what resources 
are available for Capitola residents in need. When an individual contacts Second Harvest 
through its “Need Food Hotline,” the nonprofit recommends the best option for the individual 
based on location and mobility. Those options include picking up food at a local food pantry and 
home delivery.  
 
Second Harvest has partnerships with more than 100 agencies and nonprofits throughout Santa 
Cruz County that help distribute food, including Bay Avenue Senior Apartments. Second 
Harvest indicated that in September of 2017, it distributed 9,265 pounds of food within Capitola.  
 
Free Little Libraries: City Council also requested staff also present how the free little libraries fit 
within City regulations. The little libraries are also free-standing structures that are typically 
placed in the front yard of a property or adjacent public right-of-way. They are also donation-
based and available to the public to trade books as desired. The land use type is not considered 
under the zoning code. In addition, the little free libraries are also likely structures located within 
the front yard setback.  
 
However, the free little libraries do not have the same health, safety, and neighborhood impacts 
associated with free food pantries. There are multiple free little libraries in Capitola, and staff 
has never received a complaint. With the new zoning code pending Coastal Commission 
approval, staff does not recommend making changes to the zoning ordinance at this time, but 
suggests adding free little libraries to the list of possible future modifications to the zoning code 
following Local Coastal Program modifications. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Food Pantry Cupboard Photo 
 

Report Prepared By:   Katie Herlihy 
 Community Development Director 
 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
l R

ep
o

rt
 4

-2
6-

18
  (

F
o

o
d

 C
u

p
b

o
ar

d
 C

u
rr

en
t 

Z
o

n
in

g
 U

p
d

at
e)



ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 17.52 

52-1 

Chapter 17.52 –  ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 

Sections: 

17.52.010 Purpose and Applicability 
17.52.020 Accessory Structures 
17.52.030 Accessory Uses 

17.52.010 Purpose and Applicability 

This chapter establishes requirements for accessory structures and uses in residential and 

non-residential zoning districts. These requirements do not apply to accessory dwelling units, 

including two-story accessory dwelling units above a detached garage, which are addressed in 

Chapter 17.74 (Secondary Dwelling Units). 

17.52.020 Accessory Structures 

A. All Accessory Structures. The following requirements apply to accessory structures in 

all zoning districts.   

1. Accessory structures shall be clearly incidental and subordinate to the primary 

structure on the same lot. 

2. Accessory structures may not be located on a separate lot from the primary use to 

which it is incidental and subordinate. 

3. A Minor Design Permit is required for garages, sheds and other enclosed buildings 

with one or more of the following characteristics: an enclosed area of over 120 

square feet, a height of over 10 feet, or plumbing fixtures per Section 17.120.030.A.   

4. Accessory structures attached to a primary structure are considered a part of the 

primary structure and shall comply with all standards applicable to the primary 

structure. 

5. Accessory structures may not be designed or used as a bedroom, sleeping area, 

and/or kitchen, except for accessory dwelling units consistent with Section 17.74 

(Accessory Dwelling Units) and outdoor kitchens. 

B. Accessory Structures in Residential Zoning Districts. 

1. Development Standards.  Accessory structures in residential zoning districts shall 

comply with the development standards in Table 17.52-1 and in Figure 17.52-1. 

 

 

 

 

 

10.A.2

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

7.
52

 A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

 (
F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Z

o
n

in
g

 U
p

d
at

e)



17.52 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 

52-2 

TABLE 17.52-1: ACCESSORY STRUCTURE STANDARDS IN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
 Single-Family 

Residential Zoning 

Districts 

Multi-Family Residential 

Zoning Districts 
Additional Standards 

Height, Maximum    

Structure 15 ft. [1] 15 ft.  Section 17.52.020.B.2 

Top of Wall Plate 9 ft. 9 ft.  

Width, Maximum 

23 ft. for detached garages; 

None for other accessory 

structures 

None  

Setbacks, Minimum   Section 17.52.020.B.3 

Front 

40 ft. for detached garages;  

Same as primary structure 

for other accessory 

structures 

Same as primary structure  

Interior Side 3 ft. 3 ft.  

Street Side Same as primary structure 3 ft.  

Rear 3 ft. 3 ft.  

Note: 
[1] Accessory structures less than 8 feet from a rear or interior side property line may not exceed 12 feet in 

height. 

FIGURE 17.52-1:   DETACHED GARAGE STANDARDS IN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

 
 

  

10.A.2

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

7.
52

 A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

 (
F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Z

o
n

in
g

 U
p

d
at

e)



ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 17.52 

52-3 

2. Height Exception. The Planning Commission may approve an exception to allow 

additional height if necessary to match the architectural style of the existing primary 

structure.   

3. Setback Exceptions. One accessory structure permanently attached to the ground 

is allowed by-right in required side and rear setback areas if the structure is less 

than 10 feet in height, has 120 square feet or less of enclosed area, and has no 

plumbing.  One additional accessory structure is allowed in required side and rear 

setback areas with an Administrative Permit. 

4. Driveway Standards.  The placement of detached garages shall allow for the 

design and location of driveways consistent with Chapter 17.76 (Parking and 

Loading). 

5. Nonconforming Garages.  An existing detached garage in a residential single-

family zoning district that does not comply with development standards in Table 

17.52-1 is legal nonconforming and may be repaired, renovated, or replaced 

provided that the nonconformity is not increased or exacerbated 

C. Accessory Structures in Non-Residential Zones.  Accessory structures in non-

residential zoning districts are subject to the same development standards (e.g., height 

and setbacks) as primary structures in the applicable zoning district.   Accessory 

structures should be located to the side or rear of buildings and screened from public 

view. 

17.52.030 Accessory Uses 

A. Residential Accessory Uses. The following requirements apply to accessory uses in 

residential zoning district. 

1. Accessory uses shall be located on the same parcel as a residence and shall be 

clearly incidental and subordinate to the residence. 

2. Accessory uses shall not change the character of the residential use.  Examples of 

permitted accessory uses include home occupations and personal property sales 

(i.e., garage or yard sales). 

B. Non-Residential Accessory Uses.  The following requirements apply to accessory 

uses in non-residential zoning districts. 

1. Accessory uses shall be a part of and clearly incidental and subordinate to the 

primary use to which it relates. 

2. Accessory uses shall be located on the same parcel as the primary use to which it is 

incidental and subordinate, within the structure. 

3. Accessory uses shall be customarily associated with the primary use to which it is 

incidental and subordinate.  Examples of common non-residential accessory uses 

include ATMs, vending machines, newsstands, and personal service establishments 

10.A.2

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

7.
52

 A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

 (
F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Z

o
n

in
g

 U
p

d
at

e)



17.52 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 

52-4 

(e.g., child day care, food services) intended to serve employees or customers and 

that are not visible from public streets. 

4. All exterior vending machines require a Conditional Use Permit. 

5. Accessory uses may not necessitate an increase in required number of parking 

spaces. 

 

10.A.2

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

7.
52

 A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

 (
F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Z

o
n

in
g

 U
p

d
at

e)



Park Ave

Capitola Road

41
st

 A
ve

W
harf Road

Bay Ave

Clares St

Jade St

Monterey A
ve

nue

Sir
 Francis

 Ave
nue

Escalona Drive

49
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Central Ave

Ro
se

da
le

 A
ve

Ca
pi

to
la

 A
ve

Kennedy Drive

M
onterey Avenue

Capitola

42
nd

 A
ve

46
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Ave

Cl
ar

es
 S

tr
ee

t

38
th

 A
ve

nu
e

M O N T E R E Y  B A Y

Th
om

ps
on

 A
ve

nu
e

CN

R-1

R-1

MHE
PF-S

PD

VS

PD
MHE

PD

CR

CC

RM-M

CC

CV

RM-M

RM-LM

C-C

IP

R-1

1

Balboa Ave
nue

W
esley St

Cabrillo
St

Co
rtez St

M
agellan

St

W
ashburn Avenue

Lo
m

a A
ve

McCormick Ct

Hollister Ave
Sacram

ento Ave

Oakland Ave

Saxon Ave

Fanmar Way

Stockton Ave

Cherry Ave

Bay Ave

Bu
rli

ng
am

e 
Av

e

De
l M

on
te

 A
ve

Pi
lg

rim
 D

r

O
ak

 D
r

Su
ns

et
 D

r

Ri
ve

rv
ie

w
 D

r

G
ilr

oy
 D

r

Hill St

Pine St

Trotter St
Deanes Ln 40

th
 A

ve

Crystal St

Emerald St

Garnet St

Jewel St

Opal St

Topaz St

Diamond St

47
th

 A
ve

nu
e

42
nd

 A
ve

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

48
th

 A
ve

nu
e

45
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Capitola Road
Kennedy Drive

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Brommer St

Bu
lb

 A
ve

nu
e

Garden St

Reposa Ave

Melton St

Nova Dr

38
th

 A
ve

nu
e

35
th

 A
ve

nu
e

41
st

 A
ve

nu
e

Portola Dr

Glad
ys 

Ave

Bain
 Ave

Porto
la Dr

Opal 
Cliff

 Dr

Roland Dr

Pa
rk

 A
ve

M
on

te
re

y 
Av

e

W
ill

ow
br

oo
k 

Ln

PD

CC

PF-F

PF-S

PF

PF-F

PF/VS

PF

PF/R-1

PFPF-P

CR

R-1R-1

RM-M

RM-M

RM-M

MHE

MHE

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

R-1

R-1

RM-LM

RM-LM

RM-LM

RM-H

RM/LM

CN

CN

CNCN

CN

MHE

PO

PO PO

VS

VS

VS

R-1

R-1

RM-M

PF-P/VS

PD
R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

PF-P
RM-LM

PF/VS/P

VS/R-1

PF-P/VS

PF-VS

PF-P

P/OS

PF-P P/OS

PD R-1

RM-LM

P/OS

PF

R-1 R-1

R-1

PD

PF

PF-P

PF-F

INSIDE  COASTAL BOUNDARY ZONING MAP

C I T Y  O F  C A P I T O L A

Transient Rental Overlay

Stockton Ave

Capitola Ave

Sa
n

Jo
se

Av
e

M
on

te
re

y
Av

e

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

Cliff
Dr

Cliff
Dr

Cl
iff

Av
e

*See Local Coastal Program Habitats Map for boundaries of Environmentally Sensitive Habitats Area Overlay Zone.

Residential Districts
R-1  - Single-Family Residential
RM-LM - Multi-Family Residential Low-Medium Density
RM-M - Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
RM-H - Multi-Family Residential High Density
MHE - Mobile Home Exclusive

Commercial/Office/Industrial Districts
PO - Professional Office
CR - Commercial/Residential
CN - Neighborhood Commercial
CV - Central Village
CC - Community Commercial

Industrial Districts
IP - Industrial Park

Other Districts
PF - Public Facility
VS - Visitor Serving
PD - Planned Development

Automatic Review Overlay
Residential Overlay
Transient Rental Overlay
-CZ - Coastal Zone
Santa Cruz Coastal Zone Boundary
City Limit

Residential Overlay

Stockton Ave

Capitola Ave

Sa
n

Jo
se

Av
e

M
on

te
re

y
Av

e

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

Cliff
Dr

Cl
iff

Av
e

0 500 1,000 Feet

M A R C H  2 7 ,  2 0 1 8

Source: ESRI, 2017; City of Capitola, 2018; PlaceWorks, 2018.

SEE OUTSIDE COASTAL BOUNDARY
ZONING MAP

-F     Facility
-P     Park
-OS  Open Space
-S    School

Combining District

10.A.3

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 In
si

d
e 

C
o

as
ta

l B
o

u
n

d
ar

y 
 (

F
o

o
d

 C
u

p
b

o
ar

d
 C

u
rr

en
t 

Z
o

n
in

g
 U

p
d

at
e)



Park Ave

Capitola Road

41
st

 A
ve

W
harf Road

Bay Ave

Clares St

Jade St

Monterey A
ve

nue

Sir
 Francis

 Ave
nue

Escalona Drive

49
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Central Ave

Ro
se

da
le

 A
ve

Ca
pi

to
la

 A
ve

Kennedy Drive

M
onterey Avenue

Capitola

42
nd

 A
ve

46
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Ave

Cl
ar

es
 S

tr
ee

t

38
th

 A
ve

nu
e

M O N T E R E Y  B A Y

Th
om

ps
on

 A
ve

nu
e

MH

C-R

I

R-1
R-1

C-C

RM-M

C-C

RM-M

PD

PD

PD
PD

PD
C-C

RM-L
RM-L

RM-M

RM
-H

R-1

C-R

C-R

C-R

C-R

C-R

C-R

C-R

MH MH

MH

RM-L

R-1

RM-L

RM-L

R-1

R-1C-C

RM-L

PD

RM-M
RM-M

RM-M

RM-M

RM-L

P/OS

C-C

C-C

C-C

MH

R-1 R-1

1

Balboa Ave
nue

W
esley St

Cabrillo
St

Co
rtez St

M
agellan

St

W
ashburn Avenue

Lo
m

a A
ve

McCormick Ct

Hollister Ave
Sacram

ento Ave

Oakland Ave

Saxon Ave

Fanmar Way

Stockton Ave

Cherry Ave

Bay Ave

Bu
rli

ng
am

e 
Av

e

De
l M

on
te

 A
ve

Pi
lg

rim
 D

r

O
ak

 D
r

Su
ns

et
 D

r

Ri
ve

rv
ie

w
 D

r

G
ilr

oy
 D

r

Hill St

Pine St

Trotter St
Deanes Ln

40
th

 A
ve

Crystal St

Emerald St

Garnet St

Jewel St

Opal St

Topaz St

Diamond St

47
th

 A
ve

nu
e

42
nd

 A
ve

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

48
th

 A
ve

nu
e

45
th

 A
ve

nu
e

Capitola Road
Kennedy Drive

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Brommer St

Bu
lb

 A
ve

nu
e

Garden St

Reposa Ave

Melton St

Nova Dr

38
th

 A
ve

nu
e

35
th

 A
ve

nu
e

41
st

 A
ve

nu
e

Portola Dr

Glad
ys 

Ave

Bain
 Ave

Porto
la Dr

Opal 
Cliff

 Dr

Roland Dr

Pa
rk

 A
ve

M
on

te
re

y 
Av

e

W
ill

ow
br

oo
k 

Ln

OUTSIDE COASTAL BOUNDARY ZONING  MAP

C I T Y  O F  C A P I T O L A

Village Residential

Capitola Ave

Sa
n

Jo
se

Av
e

M
on

te
re

y
Av

e

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

Cliff
Dr

Wharf Rd

Cl
iff

Av
e

Stockton Ave

Cl
iff

Dr

*See Local Coastal Program Habitats Map for boundaries of Environmentally Sensitive Habitats Area Overlay Zone.

Residential Zoning Districts
R-1 - Single-Family Residential
RM-L - Multi-Family Residential, Low Density
RM-M - Multi-Family Residential, Medium Density
RM-H - Multi-Family Residential, High Density
MH - Mobile Home Park

Mixed-Use Zoning Districts
MU-V - Mixed Use Village
MU-N - Mixed Use Neighborhood

Commercial and Industrial Zoning Districts
C-R - Regional Commercial
C-C - Community Commercial 

I - Industrial
Other Zoning Districts

P/OS - Parks and Open Space
CF - Community Facility
PD - Planned Development

Overlay Zones
-AHO - Affordable Housing Overlay
-CZ - Coastal Zone
-VRU - Vacation Rental Use
-VR - Village Residential

City Limit
Santa Cruz Coastal Zone Boundary

Vacation Rental Use

Stockt
on Ave

Capitola Ave

Sa
n

Jo
se

Av
e

M
on

te
re

y
Av

e

Pr
os

pe
ct

Av
e

Wharf Rd

Cl
iff

Av
e

Cl
iff

Dr

0 500 1,000 Feet

M A R C H  2 7 ,  2 0 1 8

Source: ESRI, 2017; City of Capitola, 2018; PlaceWorks, 2018.

SEE INSIDE COASTAL BOUNDARY
ZONING MAP

SEE INSIDE 
COASTAL BOUNDARY

ZONING MAP

SEE INSIDE 
COASTAL BOUNDARY

ZONING MAP

10.A.4

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 f

o
r 

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
as

ta
l B

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

 (
F

o
o

d
 C

u
p

b
o

ar
d

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Z

o
n

in
g

 U
p

d
at

e)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF MAY 24, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Review Potential Traffic Calming Options for Topaz Street and the Jewel Box 

Neighborhood  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review options for traffic calming for Topaz Street and the Jewel 
Box neighborhood, receive public testimony, and authorize staff to proceed with a facilitated 
public workshop. 
 
BACKGROUND: In January and February the Council held public hearings on how to address 

concerns regarding traffic volume issues on Topaz Street in the Jewel Box neighborhood. The 

ultimate outcome of those meetings was direction to: develop a series of traffic calming 

measures that would have less significant changes to the overall Jewel Box traffic patterns such 

as signage and speed tables; bring those options to Council for review; and then host a public 

meeting to obtain community feedback on the options. 

 

DISCUSSION: Several tools can be used to influence traffic that do not require the permanent 

diversion of traffic from one street to another. The following devices may prove to be helpful in 

slowing and discouraging cut-through traffic in the Jewel Box. 

Speed tables. Speed tables are midblock traffic calming devices that raise the entire wheelbase 

of a vehicle to reduce its traffic speed. Speed tables are longer than speed humps and flat-

topped, with a height of 3–3.5 inches and a length of 22 feet. Vehicle operating speeds for 

streets with speed tables range from 25 to 45 mph, depending on the spacing. Speed tables can 

be constructed in conjunction with crosswalks and curb extensions. (see Attachment 1) 

Neighborhood traffic circles: Small raised islands placed in residential roads to deflect motorists 

from travelling straight through an intersection, like a roundabout but smaller in scale. These 

require drivers to slow to a speed less than they would in a standard intersection. An analysis of 

the intersection of Topaz Street and 47th Avenue indicates that a 12-foot diameter traffic circle 

could be placed in the intersection.  Passenger vehicles would pass to the right of the circle but 

large commercial vehicles like garbage trucks or fire engines would need to pass to the left in 

order to make a turn to the left. (see Attachment 2) 

Curb extensions (choker or bulb-outs): Concrete curb extensions from the edge of the roadway 

that extend into the street that narrow the driving lanes. They can be constructed both at 

intersection (bulb-outs) or mid-block (choker). Typically, these reduce the cross section of 

traveled roadway from two lanes to one-and-one-half or one lane. (see Attachment 3) 

10.B

Packet Pg. 94



Jewel Box Traffic Calming  
May 24, 2018 
 
In addition to the constructed items above, signage and movement restrictions can also be 

useful. 

Traffic calming signs:  These signs, as shown in Attachment 4, help identify the streets as a 

neighborhood street and advise motorists to drive slowly.   

Movement restrictions: Restricting left or right turns during commute hours will redirect cut-

through traffic. The effect of the restriction is dependent on periodic enforcement. 

The plan sheet included as Attachment 5 shows how these elements could be combined to 

address different cut-through routes. Although further analysis will be required, these changes 

could potentially be implemented without creating significant impacts that would trigger CEQA 

(California Environmental Quality Act) review.  

Several residents have shared their ideas on this matter, offering differing solutions that 

eliminate cut-through routes by signage or reconfiguring intersections. Copies of these emails 

are included as Attachment 6. 

Staff’s recommendation is to consult with a traffic engineer to prepare a presentation on these 

options and present them at a workshop to be held at the Jade Street Community Center. The 

object of the workshop would be to talk about these and other options and seek a plan that is 

supported by the varied interests in the community. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The cost to host a facilitated workshop that will include a traffic engineer and 

staff is $3,000. This cost can be covered with existing funding in the Public Works engineering 

budget. The cost to implement a plan is dependent on the elements of the plan, required 

permitting, and construction costs. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Speed Tables 
2. Curb Extensions 
3. Traffic Circles 
4. Jewel Box Traffic Calming Option Plan 
5. Traffic calming signs 
6. Public input emails 

 
Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 95



Traffic Calming Measures - Speed Table

Description:

long raised speed humps with a flat section in the middle and
ramps on the ends; sometimes constructed with brick or other
textured materials on the flat section
sometimes called flat top speed humps, trapezoidal humps,
speed platforms, raised crosswalks, or raised crossings

Applications:

local and collector streets
main roads through small communities
typically long enough for the entire wheelbase of a
passenger car to rest on top
work well in combination with textured crosswalks, curb
extensions, and curb radius reductions
can include a crosswalk

Design/Installation
Issues:

typically 22 feet in
the direction of
travel with 6 foot
ramps on each
end and a 10 foot
flat section in the
middle; other
lengths (32 and 48
feet) reported in
U.S. practice
most common
height is between
3 and 4 inches
(and reported as
high as 6 inches)
ramps are typically
6 feet long
(reported up to 10
feet long) and are
either parabolic or
linear
careful design is
needed for

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1627 I ("Eye") Street, NW, Suite 600 
 Washington, DC 

 20006-3538 USA
 Phone: 202-785-0060

 Fax: 202-785-0609 
 Send comments to:
 ite_staff@ite.org

SPEED HUMP | SPEED TABLE | RAISED
INTERSECTION | CLOSURE | NEIGHBORHOOD

TRAFFIC
CIRCLE | CHICANE | CHOKER | CENTER

ISLAND NARROWING

10.B.1

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

p
ee

d
 T

ab
le

s 
 (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)

https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcdevices.asp
http://library.ite.org/
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcseminar.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcstate.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/publicinfo.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/locations.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcresources.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/index.asp
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/
http://www.ite.org/
mailto:ite_staff@ite.org
https://www.ite.org/traffic/hump.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/table.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/raised.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/closure.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/circle.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/chicane.htm
https://www.ite.org/traffic/choker.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/narrow.asp


drainage

Potential Impacts:

no effect on access
speeds are reduced, but usually to a higher crossing speed
than at speed humps (typically between 25 and 27 miles per
hour)
traffic volumes have been reduced on average by 12 percent
depending on alternative routes available
collisions have been reduced on average by 45 percent on
treated streets (not adjusted for traffic diversion)
reported to increase pedestrian visibility and likelihood that
driver yields to pedestrian

Emergency Response Issues:

typically preferred by fire departments over 12 to 14-foot
speed humps
generally less than 3 seconds of delay per hump for fire
trucks

Typical Cost:

approximately $2,500 (in 1997 dollars) for asphalt tables;
higher for brickwork, stamped asphalt, concrete ramps and
other enhancements sometimes used at pedestrian
crossings

Institute of Transportation Engineers
 1627 Eye Street, NW, Suite 600 | Washington, DC 20006 USA

 Telephone: +1 202-785-0060 | Fax: +1 202-785-0609
 ite_staff@ite.org

10.B.1

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

p
ee

d
 T

ab
le

s 
 (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)

mailto:ite_staff@ite.org


 

Traffic Calming Measures - Choker

Description:

curb extensions at midblock or intersection corners that narrow a street by extending the sidewalk or
widening the planting strip
can leave the cross section with two narrow lanes or with a single lane
at midblock, sometimes called parallel chokers, angled chokers, twisted chokers, angle points, pinch points,
or midblock narrowings
at intersections, sometimes called neckdowns, bulbouts, knuckles, or corner bulges
if marked as a crosswalk, they are also called safe crosses

Applications:

local and collector streets
pedestrian crossings
main roads through small communities
work well with speed humps, speed tables, raised intersections, textured crosswalks, curb radius reductions,
and raised median islands

Design/Installation Issues:

some applications use an island which allows drainage and
bicyclists to continue between the choker and the original curb
line
typically designed to narrow road to 20 feet for two-way traffic;
typically avoid the use of widths between 13 and 17 feet
adequate drainage is a key consideration
provides opportunity for landscaping
vertical delineators, bollards or object markers are often used
to make visible to snowplow operators

Potential Impacts:

can impact parking and driveway access
reduces pedestrian crossing width and increases visibility of pedestrian
speeds have typically been reduced on average by 4 percent for two-lane chokers and 14 percent for one
lane chokers
minor decrease in traffic for two-lane and 20 percent reduction for one-lane chokers
collision data not available
bicyclists prefer not to have the travelway narrowed into path of motor vehicles

Emergency Response Issues:

preferred by many fire department/emergency response agencies to most other traffic calming measures

Other/Special Considerations:

one-lane chokers rely on regulatory signs and driver courtesy to work

Typical Cost:

approximately $7,000 to $10,000 (1997 dollars)

 
 
 
  

 
 

1627 I ("Eye") Street, NW, Suite 600
 Washington, DC 

 20006 USA
 Phone: 202-785-0060

 Fax: 202-785-0609 
 Send comments to:
 ite_staff@ite.org

SPEED HUMP | SPEED TABLE | RAISED
INTERSECTION | CLOSURE | NEIGHBORHOOD

TRAFFIC
CIRCLE | CHICANE | CHOKER | CENTER

ISLAND NARROWING

Institute of Transportation Engineers
 1627 Eye Street, NW, Suite 600 | Washington, DC 20006 USA

 Telephone: +1 202-785-0060 | Fax: +1 202-785-0609
 ite_staff@ite.org

10.B.2

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rb

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

s 
 (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)

https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcdevices.asp
http://library.ite.org/
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcseminar.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcstate.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/publicinfo.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/locations.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcresources.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/index.asp
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/
http://www.ite.org/
mailto:ite_staff@ite.org
https://www.ite.org/traffic/hump.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/table.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/raised.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/closure.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/circle.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/chicane.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/choker.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/narrow.asp
mailto:ite_staff@ite.org


Traffic Calming Measures - Neighborhood Traffic Circle

Description:

raised islands, placed in intersections, around which traffic
circulates
motorists yield to motorists already in the intersection
require drivers to slow to a speed that allows them to comfortably
maneuver around them
sometimes called intersection islands
different from roundabouts

Applications:

intersections of local or collector streets
one lane each direction entering intersection
not typically used at intersections with high volume of large trucks
and buses turning left

Design/Installation
Issues:

typically circular
in shape, though
not always
usually
landscaped in
their center
islands, though
not always
often controlled
by YIELD signs
on all
approaches, but
many different
signage
approaches have
been used
key design
features are the
offset distance
(distance
between
projection of
street curb and

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1627 I ("Eye") Street, NW, Suite 600 
 Washington, DC 

 20006-3538 USA
 Phone: 202-785-0060

 Fax: 202-785-0609 
 Send comments to:
 ite_staff@ite.org

SPEED HUMP | SPEED TABLE | RAISED
INTERSECTION | CLOSURE | NEIGHBORHOOD

TRAFFIC
CIRCLE | CHICANE | CHOKER | CENTER

ISLAND NARROWING

10.B.3

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

ir
cl

es
  (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)

https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcdevices.asp
http://library.ite.org/
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcseminar.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcstate.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/publicinfo.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/locations.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/tcresources.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/index.asp
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/
http://www.ite.org/
mailto:ite_staff@ite.org
https://www.ite.org/traffic/hump.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/table.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/raised.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/closure.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/circle.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/chicane.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/choker.asp
https://www.ite.org/traffic/narrow.asp


center island),
lane width for
circling the circle,
the circle
diameter, and
height of
mountable outer
ring for large
vehicles such as
school buses and
trash trucks

Potential Impacts:

no effect on access
reduction in midblock speed of about 10 percent; area of
influence tends to be a couple hundred feet upstream and
downstream of intersection
only minimal diversion of traffic
intersection collisions have been reduced on average by 70
percent and overall collisions by 28 percent
can result in bicycle/auto conflicts at intersections because of
narrowed travel lane

 
Emergency Response Issues:

emergency vehicles typically slow to approximately 13 mph;
approximate delay of between 5 and 8 seconds per circle for fire
trucks
fire trucks can maneuver around traffic circles at slow speeds
provided vehicles are not parked near the circle

Other/Special Considerations:

large vehicles may need to turn left in front of the circle (which
could be unsafe at higher volumes); legislation may be required
to legally permit this movement
quality of landscaping and its maintenance are key issues
landscaping needs to be designed to allow adequate sight
distance
care must be taken to avoid routing vehicles through unmarked
crosswalks on side-street approach

Typical Cost:

approximately $3,500 to $15,000 (1997 dollars)

Institute of Transportation Engineers
 1627 Eye Street, NW, Suite 600 | Washington, DC 20006 USA

 Telephone: +1 202-785-0060 | Fax: +1 202-785-0609
 ite_staff@ite.org

10.B.3

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

ir
cl

es
  (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)

mailto:ite_staff@ite.org


FV-097XXXXXX March 2018

TOPAZ ST

47
TH

 A
VE

NORTH

TOPAZ ST

47
TH

 A
VE

TRAFFIC CIRCLE

10.B.3

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

ir
cl

es
  (

Je
w

el
 B

o
x 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
al

m
in

g
)



Potential Traffic Measures 

Legend    

Bulb Out

Neighborhood Traffic Circle

No Left Turn 3pm - 7pm

No Right Turn 3pm - 7pm

Speed Table (Approximate Location)

Traffic Calming Sign

900 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

10.B.4

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

ew
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

 O
p

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  (
Je

w
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

)



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10.B.5

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 c

al
m

in
g

 s
ig

n
s 

 (
Je

w
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

)



1

Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Karl Shubert <karl.shubert@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2018 12:25 PM
To: Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: Topaz Traffic Calming

Hi Steve, 
 
The Topaz neighbors have been discussing possible low-impact solutions that might 
"calm" the cut-through traffic on our street. We still want a solution that will significantly 
reduce this traffic volume, but not create new problems. We'd also like to get our 
thoughts to you before you lock on a decision.  
 
Our desire to see a one-way Topaz Street has changed, mostly because of the potential 
for increased speeding. We have been discussing an alternative solution that also may 
be less intrusive to the other Jewel Box neighbors. This would involve placing "No 
Entry" signs to Topaz at particular intersections. In one placement option, the "No 
Entry" signs would be placed entering both sides of Topaz on 47th Avenue. (Another 
placement possibility would be "No Entry" signs to Topaz at 45th and 49th.) In any 
placement option, Topaz remains two-way. 
 
Positives: 

1) Low cost and simple to implement. (Two signs) 
2) No involvement of the Coastal Commission or other official body. 
3) Limits the flow of East to West traffic on both sections of Topaz. 
4) West to East traffic on the west section of Topaz diverted to 47th. 
5) Full access for emergency/service vehicles is maintained.  

Downside: 

1) Enforcement will be required, especially at start. Violation of these signs is not like 
running a one-way street the wrong way, so once a vehicle is across the junction they 
are clear to go. (It would take guts to daily commute through a traffic violation.) 
2) Some minimal negative reactions from other Jewel Box neighbors. Before and after 
traffic counts will be necessary to respond to anecdotal evidence and complaints. 
 
There may be variations of these "No Entry" ideas that could be considered, such as 
limiting them to commute hours, etc. However the solution is implemented, it could 
easily be done for a trial period with little cost. Please provide me your thoughts about 
these ideas, and suggest how we should proceed to work with you. 
 
regards, 
Karl Shubert (on behalf of Topaz neighbors) 

10.B.6

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 in

p
u

t 
em

ai
ls

  (
Je

w
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

)



1

Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 4:41 PM
To: Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: FW: Jewel Box Cut-Through Traffic Intersection Reconfiguration

From: Matt Arthur [mailto:marthur70@sbcglobal.net]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 8:26 AM 
To: City Council <citycouncil@ci.capitola.ca.us>; PLANNING COMMISSION <planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Wilson, Lorrie (lwilson@ci.capitola.ca.us) <lwilson@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Ording, Molly (mollyording@yahoo.com) 
<mollyording@yahoo.com> 
Subject: Jewel Box Cut‐Through Traffic Intersection Reconfiguration 
 

Council, 
 
I'd like to thank the Capitola City Council, Police Department and the City staff for placing the safety 
of Capitola residents as their top priority. As you are well aware of, the Jewel Box neighborhood is 
less than safe due to the high volume of cross-town cut-through traffic as stated by your most recent 
traffic studies. 
 
As some of you are aware of, the morning of May 4th I was nearly struck by a cross-town cut-through 
vehicle that ran a stop sign and swerved to miss my dog and I. The gray minivan turned left off of 
Topaz, failing to stop had to swerved to miss us. The vehicle drove north on 49th Ave at a rate well 
above the posted limit, arrived at the stop sign at 49th Ave and Capitola Rd, crossed over Capitola Rd 
and continued it's cross-town path. This is the face of cut-through traffic in the Jewel Box 
neighborhood to the east of 47th Ave.  
 
Any talk of safety and cross-town cut-through traffic relief in the Jewel Box neighborhood should first 
begin with redirecting cut-through traffic out of the Jewel Box neighborhood. The 4-way stop 
intersection at 49th Ave and Capitola Rd is the single largest cause of cut through traffic in the Jewel 
Box neighborhood east of 47th Ave. Disallowing vehicles to cross over Capitola Rd on 49th Ave will 
eliminate ALL cut-through cross town-traffic wanting to connect to the north end of 49th Ave. 
Reconfiguration of this intersection will provide IMMEDIATE relief of cross-town cut-through traffic, 
restore a level of safety and will be the least impactful to the Jewel Box residents living to the east of 
47th Ave. 
  
I appreciate your time! 
 
Matt  
 
Matt Arthur 
C: 831-818-2021 
 
 

10.B.6

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 in

p
u

t 
em

ai
ls

  (
Je

w
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

)



1

Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 4:41 PM
To: Jesberg, Steve (sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: FW: Jewel Box Cut-Through Traffic Intersection Reconfiguration

 
 

From: Nels Westman [mailto:nels@bestwestman.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 3:28 PM 
To: Arthur, Matt <Marthur70@sbcglobal.net> 
Cc: City Council <citycouncil@ci.capitola.ca.us>; PLANNING COMMISSION <planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us>; 
Wilson, Lorrie (lwilson@ci.capitola.ca.us) <lwilson@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Ording, Molly (mollyording@yahoo.com) 
<mollyording@yahoo.com> 
Subject: Jewel Box Cut‐Through Traffic Intersection Reconfiguration 
 
 
 
Hi, Matt,  
 
Susan shared your email with me. Sorry to hear of your close call. Sadly your experience is the face of cut through traffic 
in many neighborhoods of Capitola, not just the Jewel Box. Eliminating it  (if possible) on one street or neighborhood 
often has the unfortunate consequence of forcing it onto other streets or neighborhoods. The elusive trick is to try to 
manage it as safely as possible when it cannot be equitably eliminated.  
 
All that being said, I think your suggestion about the intersection of 49th and Capitola Road makes some common sense. 
It would certainly eliminate the significant cut through traffic on the Wharf Road/49th Ave route but wouldn’t effectively 
discourage cut through traffic turning right  off 49th onto Capitola Road down into the Village. I’d like to suggest you 
expand on your suggestion by exploring including the installation of a 4‐way stop at 47th and Capitola Road. This will 
reduce cut through traffic east of 47th and will, I believe, improve safety throughout the Jewel Box. 
 
I suggest focusing on 47th including a Capitola Road  4‐way stop for the following reasons: 
 
1. It is a wide roadway due to no on‐street parking along most of its length.  
2. It has bike lanes. 
3. It has an abundance of speed bumps to discourage speeding. 
4. It has the only R/R crossing in the Jewel Box making it an essential route for all drivers ‐  locals and Jewel Box residents 
as well as commuters. The safety improvement of a stop sign protected intersection at Capitola Road should eliminate 
many cars using the north/south Jewel Box streets (Topaz, etc) to get to a stop‐sign protected intersection at 45th or 
49th.  
 
To those who might object to an additional stop sign on Capitola Road slowing down traffic I would say, “Hey, isn’t that 
the whole idea?”  
 
These two steps combined would be very inexpensive to implement but should significantly improve safety in the Jewel 
Box.  
 
Regards and be safe.  
 
Nels 

10.B.6

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 in

p
u

t 
em

ai
ls

  (
Je

w
el

 B
o

x 
T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

)


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	1. LABOR NEGOTIATOR

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Capitola Public Safety Foundation Update
	Printout: Capitola Public Safety Foundation Update


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointment
	Printout: Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointment
	1. Sigstedt Area Aging application


	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. 5-10 draft minutes

	B. May 3, 2018 Planning Commission Action Minutes
	Printout: May 3, 2018 Planning Commission Action Minutes
	1. 05-03-2018 Action

	C. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 4/6/18 City Check Register
	2. 4/13/18 City Check Register
	3. 4/20/18 City Check Register
	4. 4/27/18 City Check Register

	D. Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention
	Printout: Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention
	1. CVWBIA Exhibit A FY18-19
	2. CVWBIA mailed notice 

	E. Accept Donation To Museum from Begonia Festival
	Printout: Accept Donation To Museum from Begonia Festival
	1. Museum Begonia Agenda Report 5-1-18
	2. Museum Minutes Excerpt
	3. A&C Begonia Festival donation report

	F. Second Reading Water Conservation Amendment
	Printout: Second Reading Water Conservation Amendment

	G. Second Reading Yellow Curb Ordinance Amendment
	Printout: Second Reading Yellow Curb Ordinance Amendment


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update
	Printout: Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update
	1. Food Cupboard Council Report 4-26-18
	2. 17.52 Accessory Structures
	3. Zoning Map Inside Coastal Boundary
	4. 2018 Zoning Map for Outside Coastal Boundary

	B. Jewel Box Traffic Calming
	Printout: Jewel Box Traffic Calming
	1. Speed Tables
	2. Curb Extensions
	3. Traffic Circles
	4. Jewel Box Traffic Calming Option Plan
	5. Traffic calming signs
	6. Public input emails


	11. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Capitola Public Safety Foundation Update
	8.A · Consider Area Agency on Aging Appointment
	8.A.1 · Sigstedt Area Aging application

	9.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	9.A.1 · 5-10 draft minutes

	9.B · May 3, 2018 Planning Commission Action Minutes
	9.B.1 · 05-03-2018 Action

	9.C · Approval of City Check Registers
	9.C.1 · 4/6/18 City Check Register
	9.C.2 · 4/13/18 City Check Register
	9.C.3 · 4/20/18 City Check Register
	9.C.4 · 4/27/18 City Check Register

	9.D · Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee Intention
	9.D.1 · CVWBIA Exhibit A FY18-19
	9.D.2 · CVWBIA mailed notice 

	9.E · Accept Donation To Museum from Begonia Festival
	9.E.1 · Museum Begonia Agenda Report 5-1-18
	9.E.2 · Museum Minutes Excerpt
	9.E.3 · A&C Begonia Festival donation report

	9.F · Second Reading Water Conservation Amendment
	9.G · Second Reading Yellow Curb Ordinance Amendment
	10.A · Food Cupboard Current Zoning Update
	10.A.1 · Food Cupboard Council Report 4-26-18
	10.A.2 · 17.52 Accessory Structures
	10.A.3 · Zoning Map Inside Coastal Boundary
	10.A.4 · 2018 Zoning Map for Outside Coastal Boundary

	10.B · Jewel Box Traffic Calming
	10.B.1 · Speed Tables
	10.B.2 · Curb Extensions
	10.B.3 · Traffic Circles
	10.B.4 · Jewel Box Traffic Calming Option Plan
	10.B.5 · Traffic calming signs
	10.B.6 · Public input emails



